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THE FUTURE J K TECHNOSOFT LTD.

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 34" Annual report of the Company along with the
Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 31%
March 2022.

Financial highlights

Key aspects of Financial Performance/Operating Performance of the Company for the year ended
March 31, 2022 are tabulated below;

The consolidated performance of the Company and its subsidiaries has also been set out herein,
wherever required: - {In Rs. Lacs)

2020-21 2020-21
Revenue from operations 18115.00 23603.06
Other Income 247.69 743.82

Total Revenue 18362.68 24346.88

Operating expenses 15711.31 20772.11

Earnings before 2651.37 3574.77
interest,tax,depreciation and |
amortization (EBITDA)

Finance Costs 129.19 132.55
Depreciation and 264.37 271.91
amortization

Profit before Exceptional & 2257.81 3170.30
Extraordinary items & Tax

Exceptional Items 113.30 0.00
Extraordinary items 850.80 850.80
Profit before Tax (PBT) 1293.71 2319.50
Taxes 402.43 637.74
Profit for the year before 891.28 1681.76
minority interest

Minority Interest 0.00 (0.78)
Profit for the year 891.28 1682.55
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Operations

During the year, the Company has acquired 12 new customers and relationship with the existing
customers has strengthened. Penetration with existing customers done through hyper automation and
modernization solutions. There was substantial progress in Progress and QAD solutions.

On the financial front, The Company has achieved turnover of Rs. 20579.61/-Lacs during the financial year
2021-22 as compared to Rs. 18,115/- Lacs in the previous year. Earnings before interest, Taxes,
Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA) for FY 22 was Rs. 2919.77/-Lacs against Rs. 2651.37/- Lacs for FY
21. Net Profit after tax was Rs. 1960.62/- Lacs for FY 22 against Rs. 891.28/- Lacs for FY 21.

On a Consolidated basis, revenue for the year was Rs. 25911.23/- Lacs against Rs. 23603.06/- Lacs in
previous financial year. Profit before Tax was Rs. 2669.22/-Lacs for the year and Net profit for the year
was Rs. 2006.53/- Lacs.

Dividend

In order to conserve the resource of the company, the Directors do not recommend any dividend on the
equity shares of the company for the financial year 2021-22.

Reserves

During the year an amount of Rs. 1960.62/- Lacs was left as Profit After tax, which forms a part of Reserve
& Surplus. The Reserve & Surplus of the Company as on 31st March’ 2022 is Rs. 8554.34/-Lacs.

Share Capital
The paid up share capital of the company as at 31 March, 2022 was Rs. 870.35/-Lacs from Rs. 559.48/-
Lacs in the previous year. The paid up share capital was increased due to Right Issue of shares during the

year.

Changes in the nature of Business, if any

There is no change in the nature of business of the company during the year 2021-22.

Committees of the Board

As on March 31, 2022, the Board had 3 (three) Committees viz: Audit Committee, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee & Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

Directors Appointment/re-appointment

In accordance to the provisions of section 152 of the companies Act,2013 and subject to Articles of the
Company, Mr. Partho Pratim Kar (DIN: -00508567) and Mr. Abhishek Singhania (DIN: 01595040) will retire
by rotation at the ensuring Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.
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During the year under review, Mr. Narayan Prasad Agarwal (DIN: 00172930) & Mr. Vinay Kumar Singhal
(01552603) ceased to be a director (resigned)of the Company w.e.f. 23.09.2021 & 18.04.2021 respectively
and Mr. Arvind Thakur (DIN: 00042534) has been appointed as an Additional Directors w.e.f. 01.06.2021.

The term of appointment of Mr. Satish Chandra Gupta (DIN:01595040) whole time Director of the
Company will expire on 30" Day of September’'2022. The Board of Directors of the Company, on
recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee have approved his appointment for an
another period of one year from October 1,2022 to September 30, 2023 subject to the approval of
members at the ensuring Annual General Meeting.

All Independent Directors have given declarations to the effect that they meet the criteria of
independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Key Managerial Personnel

The following persons have been designated as the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company pursuant
to Section 2(51) and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules framed thereunder:

Sr. | Name DIN/Membership | Designation Tenure
No. No.

1 Mr. Satish Chandra Gupta 01595040 Whole time Director ongoing
2 Mr. Amir M. Saiyad ACS 56997 Company Secretary ONgoing

Meeting of the Board of Directors

During the year 2021-22, 6 (Six) Board meetings were convened and held. The intervening gap between
the meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.The dates on which the
meetings were held are as follows:

1% May 2021, 22™ July 2021, 2" Sept 2021, 28" Oct 2021, 14™ Feb 2022 & 23" March 2022.

Subsidiary and Associate Companies

The Company has 6 (Six) Subsidiaries as on 31* March 2022. Pursuant to the provisions of section 129 (3)
of the Act, A statement containing salient features of the financial statements of the Company's
Subsidiaries in form AOC-I is attached to the report as Annexure-i.

During the year 2021-22, Diensten Tech Limited (Formerly known as JKT Consulting Ltd.) ceased to be
subsidiary of the Company w.e.f. 29.03.2022 pursuant to sale of share and JKT Guif LLC, Oman has been
liquidated.

Consolidated Financial Statement

Pursuant to section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Accounting Standard-21, the Company has
prepared consolidated financial statements including that of its subsidiary Companies, which shall be laid

before the Members at the 34" Annual General Meeting along with the standalone financial statement
of the Company.

Director’s report 2021-22



JKTECH

Details of material changes from the end of the financial year

J K TECHNOSOFT LTD.

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company
between the end of the financial year and the date of report.

Material events during the year under review

Right issue of equity shares:

During the year under review, the company had issued and allotted 1,24,34,724 partly paid up equity
shares of Rs. 10/- each of the Company on right basis, in the ration of 2.22 new equity shares for every 1
equity share held, to eligible equity shareholders of the Company at an issue price of Rs. 80.42/- per fully
paid up equity share (including a premium of Rs. 70.42/- per equity share). An amount equivalent to 10%
of the issue price viz. Rs. 8.04/- per equity share were received on application.

The funds raised by the Company through right issue to be utilized for the objects stated in the letter of
offer, dated May 24,2021.

ESOP:

During the year the Company has planned ESOP Scheme 2021 to motivate employees and to give them
opportunity to participate and gain from the Company’s performance, thereby, acting as a retention tool
as well as to align the effort of such talent towards long term value creation in the organization and to
attract new talent. The total no. of options was 26,00,000 to Senior and Key employees with a vesting
period of minimum 1 to maximum 5 years.

Significant and Material Order(s) passed by the Regulator (s)/ Court (S) or Tribunal (s)

No significant or material orders have been passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact
the going concern status and company's operations in future.

Statutory Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of section 139(1) of the Companies Act,2013, read with the Companies (Audit
& Auditors) Rules, 2014, M/s SS Kothari Mehta & Co. Chartered Accountants (ICAl Firm Registration No.
000756N) was appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, in the Annual General Meeting held
on 31.12.2020, for a period of five years till the conclusion of 37th Annual General Meeting to be held in
the year 2025.

Auditors Report

The comments on statement of accounts referred to in the report of the Auditors are self-explanatory.
The Auditors report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

Audit Committee

The Company has an adequately qualified Audit Committee constituted in accordance with the provisions
of Companies Act, 2013. As on 31 March 2022, the Committee comprised three non-executive Directors
viz. Mr. Partho Kar, Mr. Maneesh Mansingka and Mr. Abhishek Singhania.
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All members of the Committee are financially literate and have accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Nomination and remuneration policy

In terms of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time, the policy on
nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), Senior Management and
other employees of the Company had been formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
of the Company and was approved by the Board of Directors. The policy acts as a guideline for
determining, inter-alia, qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director, matters relating
to the remuneration, appointment, removal and evaluation of performance of the Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and other employees.

Whistle blower policy

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has in place Whistle Blower Policy
to encourage all employees or any other person dealing with the Company to disclose any wrong doing
that may adversely impact the Company, the Company’s customers, shareholders, employees, investors,
or the public at large. This policy, inter-alia, also sets forth (i) procedures for reporting of questionable
auditing accounting, internal control and unjust enrichment matters.

Related Party Transactions

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year 2021-22, were on arm's
length basis and were in the ordinary course of business and that the provisions of section 188 of the
companies Act, 2013 are not attracted. Further there are no material related party transactions made by
the company with promoters, Directors or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict
with the interest of the company at large. Disclosure of related party transactions during the year is
annexed in form no. AOC Il as Annexure-ii.

Public Deposits

During the year under review, Your Company did not accept deposits covered under Chapter V of the
Companies Act, 2013.

internal Control systems and adequacy of internal Financial Control

The Company has put in place adequate Internal Financial Control procedures commensurate with its size,
scale and complexities of its operations and nature of business. The financial control are tested for
operating effectiveness through ongoing monitoring and review process by the management and also
independently by the independent Firm/Auditors. Where weakness are identified as a result of the
review, new procedures are put in place to strengthen controls and these are in turn reviewed at regular
intervals. The Internal Auditors reports functionally to the Audit Committee of Board, which reviews and
approves risk based Internal Audit plan. The Audit Committee and also the Board of Directors periodically
reviews the performance of Internal Audit function.
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Basis the review, nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that any material
breakdown in the function of these controls, procedures or systems occurred during the year under
review.

J K TECHNOSOFT LTD.

Risk Management Policy

The Company has a well laid out risk management policy, covering the process of identifying, assessing,
mitigating and reviewing critical risks impacting the achievements of the Company's objectives.

Extract of Annual Return

The details forming part of the extract of Annual return in form no. MGT-9 as required under section 92
of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed hereto as ANNEXURE-III.
The same can also be accessed on the website of the company at https://jktech.com/investors/

Corporate Social Responsibility

Pursuant to the amendment to the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014, notified
onJanuary 22, 2021, the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company was amended accordingly.

The details of the initiatives taken by the Company on CSR during the year as per the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 & the amendments thereof, has been annexed to this
report as “Annexure IV”.

Disclosure under Sexual harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has in place a policy on prevention of sexual harassment and has put in place a redressal
mechanism for resolving complaints received with respect to sexual harassment and discriminatory
employment practices. No case of sexual harassment and discriminatory employment was reported
during the financial year under review.

Details of application made or proceedings pending under the insolvency & Bankruptcy code
of India 2016

During the year under review, there were no application made or proceeding pending in the name of the
Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code of India.

Details of difference between valuation amount on one time settiement and valuation while
availing loan from banks and financial institutions

During the year under review, there has been no one time settlement of Loans taken from Banks and
Financial Institutions.

Compliance with secretarial standards
The Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the Secretarial Standard- 1 and Secretarial
Standard-2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
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Particulars of Loans, guarantee or investments under Section 186

Details of Loans and Advances made during the year are given under notes to the financial statements.

Particulars of Employees

During the year, the company has not engaged any employee whose particulars are required to be
reported under the provisions of section 134 of the companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Appointment & Remuneration) Rules, 2014.

Conservation of energy

The company is in Service Industry and do not consume high level of energy, adequate measures have
been taken by the management to consume energy by using energy-efficient computers & equipment
with the latest Technologies. As the cost of energy consumed by the Company forms a very small portion
of the total cost, the impact of change in energy cost on total cost is insignificant.

Technology Absorption

Your Company has no activity related to Technology Absorption.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The total value of Export is Rs. 13,688.99/-Lacs as compared to Rs. 11,461.15/- Lacs in previous year. The
company has also spent Rs. 2.38/- Lacs on foreign Travelling and other Activities during the year .

Directors Responsibility Statement
To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by
them, your directors state that;

1. In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31,2021 , the
applicable Accounting Standards have been followed and that no material departures have been
made from the same;

2. They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the company of for that
year;

3. They have taken proper and sufficient care for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the companies Act,2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

4. They have prepared the annual accounts ongoing concern basis;
5. They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such

internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and
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6. They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Acknowliedgement
Your directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the services of the employees at all levels
and for the assistance form holding company, bank, customers, vendors and member during the vear

under review.

For and on Behaif of Board of Directors

OF ) K TECHNOSOFT LIMITED
i s \J
< = N
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Satish Chandra Gupta (DIN 01595040) Partho Pratim Kar (DIN 00508567)
Director Director
Add: B-47, Sector-36, Noida-201301 Add: A-94, Sector-30, Noida-201301

Date: ilhlf“‘“—‘ ARZ
Place; New Delh?
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ANNEXURE-I

FORM AOC-I
(Pursuant to first proviso to seb section(3) of section 129 read with Rule 5 of the Companies(Accounts) Rules,2014))
Statement containing salient features of the financial statements of Subsidiaries/Associates/joint ventures

Reporting
currency and
exchange
rate as on
the last date
sl. Name of of the Exchange Reserve & Tl | Profititass) | peovisiontor | promtfloss) | Proposed |  ®°
. relevent Share Capital Total Assets " stmen Turnover before . o 2 Sharehol
No. | Subsidiaries/Associates F— Rate (Rs.) Surplus Liabilities & Taiatlon Taxation | After Taxation| Dividend P
year in the
case of
foreign
subsidiaries
JK Tech US Inc (Formerly
T i UsD 759095 | 18,97,738| 27,11,95646| 39,32,02,480| 12,01,09,097| - | 132,9960553| (1,1090985)| 32.83465| (7807520 - 100%
Consulting Inc.,) United
States
JK Tech UK Ltd.
(Formerly known as JK
2 |Technosoft (UK) GBP 99.81 19,96,140 5,98,09,944| 15,62,42,569| 9,44,36,485 - 47,49,21,529 (22,85,580) (4,34,260) 18,51,320 - 100%
Limited), United
Kingdom
JKT Bangladesh Private
3 |Limited, Dhaka BDT 0.8812 6,46,600 (52,96,572) 87,96,908| 1,35,26,806 - - (3,80,485) - (3,80,485) - 100%
Bangladesh
4 |IKT GCC WLL, Bahrain BHD 201.3452 9,86,591 56,65,922 89,56,795| (1,20,69,192) - 25,63,233 25,53,799 NIL 25,53,799 - 98%
g [ eane iy, EURO | 84062 | 84062 544054 6052129  53,23923| - 1,87,01,983  14,03,854 131,503  12,72,261| - NIL
Netherlands
E Safe Solutions Pvt. Ltd.
6 |(Formerly known as JKT INR 1 1,70,00,000| (4,99,78,590) 82,20,420| 4,11,99,010 - NIL (53,15,910) - (53,15,910), - 90%
Learning Solutions
Notes

1 Indian Rupee Equivalents of the figures given in foreign currencies in accounts of foreign companies, are based on exchange rates as on March 31, 2022.
2 The reporting period of all subsidiaries excluding IKT Bangladesh Private Limited JKT & Europe B.V. is March 31, 2022.

3 Provisional figures have been taken for JKT Bangladesh Private Limited KT Europe B.V.
4 During the year 2021-22 Diensten Tech Limited & JKT GCC WLL ceased to be the subsidiaries of the Company

5 All figures are in Rs. INR

Place: New Delhi
Date: 22.06.2022

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
J K Technosoft Limited

> wf
= - w—_y .
.

Satish Chandra Gupta (Director) Partho Pratim Kar(Director)
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Annexure Il

FORM NO. AOC-2
{Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section(3) of section 134 of the Act and Ruie 8(2) of the companies (Accounts) Ruies,2014)

JK Technosoft Limited

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section
(1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis-

There was no Contracts or Arrangements or Transactions entered into during the year ended 31st March, 2022, which were not at arm'’s

length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm'’s length basis-

Details of material contracts or Arrangements or Transactions at arm’s length basis for the year ended March 31, 2022 are as follows:

Name of related |Nature of Nature of transaction Transaction Value Duration of Date of approval | Amount
party relationship Transaction by Board, if any Paid as
advance, if
any
1. JK Tech UK Sale of Services/product 3,064.47
Limited (Formerly G
Subsidiary
known as J.K. Edisnil Reimb it dlf
Technosoft (UK) ARy Ee": oa 104,04
Ltd.) i
2.JK Tech US inc. Sale of Services/product 9,627.45
(Formerly Known Subsidiary
as Proserve Company Reimbursement of 8.40
Consulting Inc.) Expenses ’
Professional Charges Paid 33.24
Received against
3. Diensten Tech Subsidiary |Loans/Advance given S
Limited (Formerly .
Company (Until
known as JKT 29.03.2022) g
Consuiting Ltd.) S Loans / Advance 49.83
Given/Repaid April 2021-March- VA A
2022 o
Rent charges Paid 16.58
4. E Safe L d
Solutions Pvt. Ltd. e ’RA 2 0.01
( Formarly know |  Subsidiary en/fepet
as JKT Learning Company
Solutions Pvt.
Ltd.}
5.KT Netherlands| Subsidiary -
B.V. Company Sale of Services/product 167.67
6. JKT GCC WLL Subsidiary  |Reimbursement of 5.53
Company |Expenses
7. Wow Softech
Pvt, Ltd. NA Professional Charges Paid 2.94
NA Purchase of fixed assets 6.00
Insurencexellence
Advisors Pvt. Ltd. N\

C’

TR

Satish Chandra Gupta (DIN: 01595040}

Director

Bigee: 2205 ML‘
pater New o'k

W

Partho Pratim Kar (DIN: 00508557\)\' ?

Director
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| REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

i
ii
iii
iv
v

vi
vii

CIN
Registration Date

Name of the Company
Category/Sub-category of the

xddress of the Registered office

& contact details

Whether listed company

Name , Address & contact details of
the Registrar & Transfer Agent, if
any.

Annexure ili
FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
{As on financial year ended on 31.03.2022)

2014,

U64202DL1988PLCO30870
07-03-1988

J K Technosoft Limited
Public Company

A-2,L5C, Masjid Moth, Greater Kailash-1l, New Delhi-110048

No

NSDL Database Management Limited (CIN U72400MH2004PLC147094)
+4th Floor, Trade World A Wing, Kamala Mills Compound, Senapati Bapat
+Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013

022 4914 2594 (D), 022 4914 2597 (D)

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated

IK Technosoft Limited

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and ruie 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration ) Ruies,

SLNo

Name & Description of main products/services

NIC Code of the
Product /service

% to total turnover
of the company

Computer Programming, Consultancy and Related Activities

62011

100%

PARTICU

LARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

S Ne

Name & Address of the Company

CIN/GLN Holding/ Subsidiary/

Associate

% of Shares Held

Applicable
Section

JK Tech US inc. (Formerly known as
Proserve Consulting Inc.) 608, Fifth
Avenue,Suite 401, New York, NY
10020, USA

NA Subsidiary Company

2(87) (ii)

JK Tech UK Ltd. (Formerly known as
JK Technosoft (UK) Limited), UK
Highfield House, 1562, Stratford
Road, Hall Green, B28 9HA,

NA Subsidiary Company

100%

2(87) (ii)

JKT Bangladesh Private Limited,
Hakam Foundation House, 98 Block,
C Road, 11 Banani Model Town,
Dhaka 1213, Bangladesh

NA Subsidiary Company

100%

2(87) (ii)

JKT GCC WLL

Office 2210, 22nd Floor,
Almoayyed Tower
Building 2504, Road 2832,
Biock 428, Al Seef,
Kingdom of Bahrain

NA Subsidiary Company

98%

2(87) (ii)

E Safe Solutions Private Limited, A-
2,5hopping Complex, Masjid Moth,
Greater Kailash-1l, New Delhi-110048

U74140DL2007PLC160160 Subsidiary Company

50%

2(87)

JKT Europe B.V. World Trade Centre,
The Hague Business centre, Prinses
Margrietplantsoen 33, 2595, AM The
Hague, Netherlands

NA Subsidiary Company

2(87)
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IV SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity)

(i) Category-wise Shareholding

JK Technosoft Limited

Category of Shareholders

No. of share heid at the beginning of the year (April 1,

2021

No. of share held at the end of the year (March 31, 2022)

Demat

Physical

Total

% of Total
Share

Demat

Physical

Total

%
Total
Share

of|

%
Change
during
the
year

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF

2,35,804

2,35,804

4.21%

2,35,804

2,35,804

4.21%

0.00%

b) Central Govt. or State Gowvt.

¢) Bodies Corporates

51,52,950

51,52,950

92.10%

51,52,950

51,52,950

92.10%

0.00%

d) Bank/Fl

SUB TOTAL:(A) (1)

53,388,754

53,88,754

96.31%

53,88,754

53,88,754

96.31%

0.00%

(2) Foreign

a) NRI- Individuals

b) Other Individuals

c) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks/Fl

e) Any other...

SUB TOTAL (A) (2}

Total Shareholding of Promoter
(A)= (A)1)+(A)(2)

53,88,754

53,88,754

96.31%

53,88,754

53,88,754

96.31%

0.00%

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

(1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks/Fl

C) Central Govt.

d) State Govt.

e) Venture Capital Fund

f) Insurance Companies

&) FIIS

h) Foreign Venture Capital Fund.

i) Others (specify)

SUB TOTAL (B){1):

(2) Non Institutions

a) Bodies corporates

i) Indian |

1,10,000

1,10,000

1.96%

1,10,000

1,10,000

ii) Overseas

1.96%

b) Individuals

i) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share capital
upto Rs.1 lakhs

37,500

58,624

96,124

1.71%

52,124

96,124

1.71%

0.00%

ii) Individuals sharehoiders
holding nominal share capital
in excess of Rs. 1 lakhs

c) Others

SUB TOTAL (B)(2):

37,500

1,68,624

2,06,124

3.67%

1,62,124

2,06,124

3.67%

0.00%

Total Public Sharehoiding
(B)= (B){1)+(B)(2)

37,500

1,68,624

2,06,124

3.67%

44,000

1,62,124

2,06,124

3.67%

0.00%

C. Shares held by Custodian for GDRs & ADRs - NIL

Grand Total (A+B+C) |

54,26,254 |

1,68,624 |

55,94,878 |

100%|

54,32,754 |

1,62,124 |

55,94,878 |

100%|

0%

Note*

The Board of Directors of the company on March 12,2021 approved fund raising by way of right issue and on approved issued of 12434724 equity shares of

face value of Rs. 10/- each equity share of face value of Rs. 10/- (Right Equity Share) at a price of Rs. 80.42 per right equity share including premium of Rs.
70.42 per right equity share aggregating to Rs. 10,000 Lakh in the ratio of 2.22 right equity shares for every One existing fully paid up shares held by the
eligible equity share holders as on record date March 12,2021. On July 22, 2021 the company approved allotment of 12434714 right equity shares of face
value of Rs. 10/- each to eligible applicants, right equity shares were allotted as a partly paid up for an amount of Rs. 8.04 per right equity share received on
application (of which Rs. 2.50 was towards face value and Rs. 5.54 was towards premium)
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(i) Shareholding of Promoters

Sl. No. No. of shares held at the beginning of the No. of shares held at the end of the year %
year (April 1, 2021} {March 31, 2022) Change
during
No. of Shares [% of Total|% of shares No. of Shares % of Total Share of|% of
Share of|pledged the Company shares
the encumbered to pledge
Shareholder’s Name Company [total shares d
encum
bered
to total
shares
1{Neelkhanth Mercantile Private Limited 6,58,500 11.77 6,58,500 11.77 - 0%
2|Akshyapatra Finance & Investment Pvt. Ltd. 4,97,500 8.89 - 4,97,500 8.89 - 0%
3|Manphul Trading & Finance Co. Ltd. 12,65,950 22.63 - 12,65,950 22.63 - 0%
4|Udbhav Finance & Investment Pvt. Ltd. 5,000 0.09 2 5,000 0.09 - 0%
5|JK Infrastructure & Developers Ltd. 7,30,000 13.05 - 7,30,000 13.05 - 0%
6|Abhishek Singhania 2,15,804 3.86 - 2,15,804 3.86 - 0.00%
7|Manorama Singhania 10,000 0.18 - 10,000 0.18 - 0%
8|Varsha Singhania 10,000 0.18 - 10,000 0.18 - 0%
9|PGA Securities Pvt. Ltd. 1,00,000 1.79 - 1,00,000 1.79 - 0%
10}JK Consultancy and Services Ltd. 3,00,000 5.36 - 3,00,000 5.36 - 0%
11| Dwarikadhish Finance & Investment Co Pvt Ltd 15,96,000 28.53 - 15,96,000 28.53 - 0%
Total 53,88,754 96.32 - 53,88,754 96.32 - 0.00%
(iii} Change in Promoter's Holding: NO CHANGE
Sl No. Shareholder's Name No. of shares held at the beginning of the year (April 1, | Cumulative Shareholding during the vear {Aprii 1, 2021
2021) to March 31, 2022)
No. of Shares % of Total Share of the No. of Shares % of Total Share
Company of the Company
1
At the beginning of the year
Increase/decrease during the year
At the end of the year - 0.00% - 0.00%

(v} Shareholding Pattern of Top Ten Shareholders {Other than Directors, Promaters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

Sl. No. Shareholder's Name No. of shares held at the beginning of the year (April 1, No. of shares held at the end of the year (March 31,
2021) 2022)
No. of Shares % of Total Share of the No. of Shares % of Total Share
Company of the Company

1|0Ojas Suppliers Limited

At the beginning of the year 1,10,000 1.97% 1,10,000 1.97%

Increase/decrease during the year - - . 5

At the end of the year 1,10,000 1.97% 1,10,000 1.97%
2|Manoj Kumar

At the beginning of the year 12,200 0.22% 12,200 0.22%

Increase/decrease during the year i _

At the end of the year 12,200 0.22% 12,200 0.22%
3|Babu Abraham

At the beginning of the year 10,000 0.18% 10,000 0.18%

Increase/decrease during the year 3 = = a

At the end of the year 10,000 0.18% 10,000 0.18%
4{Shyam Verma

At the beginning of the year 10,000 0.18% 10,000 0.18%

Increase/decrease during the year “ - =

At the end of the year 10,000 0.18% 10,000 0.18%
5|Anusuya Rao
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At the beginning of the year 4,000 0.07% 4,000 0.07%
Increase/decrease during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 4,000 0.07% 4,000 0.07%

6|Jagninder Sukhija
At the beginning of the year 3,500 0.06% 3,500 0.06%
Increase/decrease during the year - - n n
At the end of the year 3,500 0.06% 3,500 0.06%
7|Sanjeev Thapliyal
At the beginning of the year 3,500 0.06% 3,500 0.06%
Increase/decrease during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 3,500 0.06% 3,500 0.06%
8|A Bharat Kumar
At the beginning of the year 3,500 0.06% 3,500 0.06%
Increase/decrease during the year - 5 = &
At the end of the year 3,500 0.06% 3,500 0.06%
9|Prabhu Jha
At the beginning of the year 3,000 0.05% 3,000 0.05%
Increase/decrease during the year - - . -
At the end of the year 3,000 0.05% 3,000 0.05%
10|K Kesava Das
At the beginning of the year 3,000 0.05% 3,000 0.05%
Increase/decrease during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 3,000 0.05% 3,000 0.05%

(v} Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnnel (KMP}

v

Sh. No.

Shareholder’'s Name

No. of share heid at the beginning of the year (April 1,

2021)

No. of share heid at the end of the year (March 31,

2022)

No. of Shares

% of Total Share of the
Company

No. of Shares

% of Total Share
of the Company

[

Abhishek Singhania

At the beginning of the year

2,15,804

3.86%

2,15,804

3.86%

Increase/decrease during the year

At the end of the year

2,15,804

3.86%

2,15,804

3.86%

L

Satish Chandra Gupta

At the beginning of the year

15,000

0.27%

15,000

0.27%

Increase/decrease during the year

At the end of the year

15,000

0.27%

15,000

0.27%

w

Partho Pratim Kar

At the beginning of the year

2,500

0.04%

2,500

0%

Increase/decrease during the year (By
Purchase)

2,500

0.04%

2,500

0.04%

At the end of the year

5,000

0.08%

5,000

0.08%

4|Maneesh Mansingka

At the beginning of the year

Increase/decrease during the year

At the end of the year

5|Arvind Thakur

At the beginning of the year

Increase/decrease during the year

At the end of the year

o

Vipul Prakash

At the beginning of the year

Increase/decrease during the year

At the end of the year

~

Salyad M. Amir

At the beginning of the year

Increase/decrease during the year

At the end of the year

INDEBTEDNESS

indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
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Particulars Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total

excluding deposits Loans Indebtedness

Indebtness at the beginning of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 89.18 - 89.18

i) Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii) Interest accrued but not due 0.33 - - 0.33

Total (i+ii+iii) 89.51 - - 89.51

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

Additions - - - -

Reduction 25.75 - - 25.75

Net Change - 25.75 - - - 25.75

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 63.43 - - 63.43

i) Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii) Interest accrued but not due 0.40 - - 0.40

Total (i+ii+iii) 63.83 = = 63.83

Vi REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A,  Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager: (In Rs. Lac)
Sk No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of the MD/WTD/Manager Total Amount
Satish Chandra Gupta WTD

1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income Tax, 1961, 36.07 36.07

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income tax Act, 1961 =
(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

2  |Stock option
Sweat Equity
Commission

as % of profit
Others (specify)

5 Others (Ex Gratia)
Total (A) - 36.07 36.07
Ceiling as per the Act 84.00

Blw

B.  Remuneration to other directors: (In Rs. Lac)
Sl. No. |Particulars of Remuneration Name of the Directors Total Amount
1 Independent Directors- Mr. Maneesh Mansingka
(a) Fee for attending board/ committee meetings - 0.56
(b) Commission - -
(c ) Others, please specify - -
Total {1} - 0.56
2 Other Non Executiva Directors Mr. Arvind Thakur
(a) Fee for attending board /committee meetings 2.50
(b) Commission & N
(c ] Others, - Professional Charges 20.00
Total (2) < 22.50
Total (B)={1+2) - 23.06
Total Managerial Remuneration 36.07
Overall Ceiling as per the Act. 84.00

€. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/ Managers/ WTDS {In Rs. Lac)
Sl. No. |Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personne! Total Amount
CEO s CFO
1 |Gross Salary 7.70 7.70
{a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act,
1961.

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the iIncome Tax Act, 1961

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option

Sweat Equity

a Commission

as % of profit

others, specify

5 |Others, please specify

Total 7.70 7.70

w
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VIl. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Sl. No. |Type Section of the Companies Act Brief Description Details of Authori| Appeal
Penalty/Punishment/Compounding |ty made if
fees imposed (RD/NClany

LT/Cou |(give
rt) details)

A. COMPANY
Penalty - - - -
Punishment - - - -
Compounding - - - -
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -
G OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - = " n -
Compounding -

For and on Behaif of Board of Directors of \\gﬂ
J K TECHNOSOFT LIMITED J , .
o o N &y

Satish Chandra Gupta (DIN: 01595040) Partho Pratim Kar (DIN:00508567)
Director Director

Place: NYe&w2 D"h"
Date: 22.¢% 232
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Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities

Annexure IV

i.Brief outline on CSR policy of the Company:

JK Technosoft Limited

The Company is committed to serve the community in need and also encourage its employees to do so

and to give back to the society through various developmental activities.

The Company has developed and implemented its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy. The
Company deeply acknowledges that its Business operations have wide impact on the regions where it

operates, and therefore it is committed to grow in a socially and environmentally responsible way, while

meeting the interests of the Stakeholders.

As per CSR policy of the Company, Company can undertake any of the Programme or Activities as
mentioned in the Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and which will include any modification or

amendment thereof.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Sr. Name of Director Designation/Nature | No. of meetings | No. of meetings

No. of Directorship of CSR Committee | of CSR Committee
held during the | attended during
year the year

1 Mr. Satish Chandra Gupta Director 1 1

2 Mr. Vipul Prakash Director 1 h

3 Mr. Partho Pratim Kar Director 1 1

3. The web link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects approved by the

Board are disclosed on the website of the Company: https

iktech.com/we-give-back

4. The details of impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance to sub rule {3) of Rule 8 of
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy), Rules 2014, if applicable : N.A.

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub rule (3) of Rule 7 of the Companies
{Corporate Social Responsibility Policy), Rules 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial
year, if any: NIL

6. Average net profit of the Company as per Section 135 (5): Rs. 6,61,18,425/-

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135 (5): Rs. 13,22,369/-

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects programmes or activities of the previous financial years: NIL

(C) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any : NIL

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b+7c): Rs. 13,22,369/-
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8 (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

JK Technosoft Limited

Total
spent

financial year (in

amount
for the

Amount Unspent (in Rs. INR)

Total amount transferred to unspent

Amount transferred to any fund specified under schedule VIi

Rs. INR) CSR Account as per section 135 as per second proviso to section 135 (5)
(6)
Amount Date of transfer Name of the fund | amount Date of transfer
Rs. 13,22,369 NIL NA NA NIL NA
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
(1) | @ (3) (4) (5) 6) | () (8) (9) (10) {11)
sl Name | Item Local Location of the | Pro | Amount | Amount | Amount Mode | Mode of
No | of the | from area project jec | allocate | spentin | transferre | of implementati
projec | the list | (Yes/No 3 d for the | the d to | imple | on  through
t of ) dur | project current | unspent menta | impiementing
activitie ati | (inRs.) financia | CSR tion- agency
s in on I year | Account Direct
schedul (InRs.) | for the | (Yes/
e Vil to project as | No)
the act per section
135 (6) (in
Rs.)
State District Name | CSR
Regi
strat
ion
no.
NOT APPLICABLE
TOTAL
(C) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
1 [@ @3) @ ) (6) (7) (8)
Si Name of the | Item from the list of | Loca | Location of the | Amount Meode of | Mode of
No | project activities in schedule | | project spent in the | impiemen | implementatio
Vil to the act area current tation- n -through
{Yes financial year | Direct implementing
/No) (In Rs.) (Yes/No) | agenq
State District Na CSR
me Registra
tion no.
1| Grant of financial | training to promote | No Uttar Kanpur Rs. Yes NA NA
assistance to  Sir | rural sports, Pradesh 13,22,369/-
Padampat Singhania | nationally recognized
Sports Academy for | sports, Paralympic
promoting rural | sports and Olympic
sports, national | sports.
sports etc.
Total 13,22,369/-

(d) Amount spent in Administrative overheads: NiL

(e ) Amount spent in impact assessment , if applicable: NIL
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(f) Total amount spent for the financial year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 13,22,369/-

(g) Excess amount spent for set off, if any: NIL

JK Technosoft Limited

Sr. No. | Particular Amount (in Rs.)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year
(iii)
Excess amount spent for the financial year [{ii)-(i)]
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of
the previous financial years, if any
(v)
Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)]

9. (a) Details of unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NiL

Sl. Preceding Arnount Amount spent | Amount transferred to any fund specified | Amount  rema-
No. Financial transferred to | in the | under Scheduie VIl as per section 135(6), | ining to be spent
Year. Unspent CSR | reporting if any. in
Account under | Financial Year succee-ding
section 135 (6) | (inRs.) financial  years.
{in Rs.) {in Rs.)
Name Amount {in | Date of
of the | Rs) transfer
Fund
Totai

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year

{s): NIL
1) |(2) |(3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)
SLN | Proj | Name of | Financial Year | Project | Total amount | Amount spent on | Cumulative Status of
] ect the in which the | duratic | allocated for | the project In | amount spent | the
ID Project project was | n the project (in | the reporting | at the end of | project -
commenced Rs.) Financial Year (in | reporting Complete
Rs). Financial d
Year. {in Rs.) /Ongoing
TOTAL

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created
or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: Not Applicable

(Asset wise details):

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): N.A.
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JK Technosoft Limited

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: N.A.

{c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is
registered, their address etc.: N.A,

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (inciuding complete address and location of
the capital asset): N.A.

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as
per section 135(5): N.A.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

J K Technosoft Limited

:C&-M\/}

Satish Chandra Gupta {DIN: 01595040)
Director

Dale ; 22.06 202
ﬂate H N"&V) D(’“’Uh
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S S KOTHARI MEHTA
& COMPANY ™

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members
] K Technosoft Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of | K Technosoft Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company” or “the Company’) and Its subsidiaries (“‘the
Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™), comprising the
Consolidated Balance sheet as at 31st March 2022, and the Consolidated statement of Profit and
Loss and Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information(hereinafter referred to as “consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial
statements of such subsidiaries as audited by those other auditors, the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 (“The Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31,
2022, and the consolidated profit and consolidated cash flows for the year ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence, obtained by us
& other auditors in terms of their reports and information provided for Management Certified
Financial Statements of Seven Subsidiaries as referred to in “Other Matters” Paragraph below, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Director’s Report,
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The
other info is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report.
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

When we read the other information identified above if, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for consolidated
financial statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation
of these consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act,
read with relevant rules issued thereunder. The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Croup and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statement that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by
the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective
entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate them, or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the respective entities.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
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to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the respective entities to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other
auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the s ;}gr audit work and in
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S S KOTHARI MEHTA
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Company regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeqguards.

Other Matters

a)

b)

d)

We did not audit the financial statements of one erstwhile subsidiary company
incorporated in India which ceased to be the subsidiary of the company during the year,
whose financial statements reflect total revenue of Rs. 76.53 lakhs and total net profit/(loss)
after tax of Rs. 1.46 lakhs till the date of cession i.e. March 29, 2022 which is considered in
the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by
other auditor, whose report has been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion
on the consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of this erstwhile subsidiary company, are based solely on
the report of the other auditor.

We did not audit the financial statements of one erstwhile subsidiary company
incorporated outside India and ceased to be the subsidiary of the company during the
year due to its liquidation. Since the company has not carried any operations during the
year, it was not having any revenue and net profit/(loss) during the period, which is
required to be considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial
statements have been certified by the management and our opinion on the Consolidated
Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of this erstwhile subsidiary company, are based solely on the management
certified financial statements.

We did not audit the financial statement of one subsidiary company incorporated in India,
whose financial statements reflected total assets of Rs. 134.95 lakhs as at March 31, 2022,
total revenue of Rs NIL, total net profit/(Loss) after tax of Rs (0.42) lakhs for the year
ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated Financial Statements. These
financial statements have been certified by the management and our opinion on the
Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of this erstwhile subsidiary company, are based solely on the
management certified financial statements.

We did not audit the financial statements of two subsidiary companies incorporated
outside India, whose financial statement reflect total assets Rs.5579.42 lakhs as at March
31, 2022, total revenue of Rs. 17863.53 lakhs and total net profit/(loss) after tax of Rs.
(95.06) lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2022 as considered in the consolidated
financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors,
whose report has been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the
consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures

f—"
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included in respect of these subsidiary companies, are based solely on the report of the
other auditors.

We did not audit the financial statements of four subsidiary companies incorporated
outside India, whose financial statements reflected total assets of Rs. 238.34 lakhs as at
March 31, 2022, total revenue of 215.90 lakhs, total net profit/(Loss) after tax of Rs 37.83
lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the Consolidated Financial
Statements. This financial statement is unaudited and have been furnished to us by the
management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosers included in respect of this subsidiary are based
solely on the certificate furnished by the management.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements and our report on other Legal and
regulatory requirements below is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to
our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and financial statements
certified by the management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

1.

(€Y

()

(©

@

(e)

®

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on consideration of the
report of the other auditors on financial statements and the other financial information of
subsidiaries as referred to in other Matters paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable,
that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors;

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss, and Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account and other records maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the report of statutory auditors of its subsidiaries companies incorporated in
India, none of the directors of group are disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statement of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure A”;
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(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The consolidated financial statements disclose impact of pending litigations as at March
31, 2022 on its financial position of the Group. Refer Note No. 38 to the financial
statements.

ii. The Group have made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including long
term derivative contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
incorporated in India.

iv. (a) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act, have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company or any of such subsidiaries to or
in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or any of such subsidiaries
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act, have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the Company or any of such subsidiaries from any person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company or any of such subsidiaries shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or

provide any guarantee, security the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries. ¥
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(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v.  The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year and until the
date of this report incompliance with Section 123 of the Act.

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”/ “CARO”) issued by the Central Government in terms of
Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor's report, according to the
information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for
the Company included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company, to which
reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse
remarks in the CARO report.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants

\ke

-\'Jv".

> |

Z
Naveen Aggarwal B /’
Partner S

Membership No. 094380
UDIN : 22094380A00BOX6191
Place: New Delhi

Date: 22nd June 2022
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“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of ] K Technosoft Limited.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 2(f) of ‘Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of | K Technosoft Limited
(“the Holding Company”) as of March 31, 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of Holding Company, its subsidiary, which are
incorporated in India as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary incorporated in
India,are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the respective
Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued
by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A Holding company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference
to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (c)provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and one Subsidiary incorporated in India has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For § § Kothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 000756

)
Naveen Aggarwal
Partner
Membership Number: 094380
UDIN : 22094380A00B0OX6191
Place: New Delhi

Date: 22nd June 2022
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J K Technosoft Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
(ANl amounis are in lakh, unless otherwise stated)

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE ATTACHED HEREWITH

Note Asat As at
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholder's Funds
(a)  Share Capital 2 870.36 559.49
(b)  Reserves and Surplus 3 11,029.24 823592
Minority Interest 4 - 18.86
Non- Current Liabilities
(a) Longterm borrowings 5 38.69 63.43
(b) Long term Provisions 6 1,252.25 1,305.03
Current Liabilities
(a)  Short term borrowings 7 2473 2595
(b)  Trade Payables 8
(i)  Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprise 11314 74.55
(1) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 489.52 348.08
(c)  Other current liabilities 9 1,766.80 2.922.73
(d)  Short term provisions 10 178.40 527.21
TOTAL 15,763.13 14,081.05
II  ASSETS
Non Current Assets
(a)  Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets 11
(i)  Property, Plant and Equipment 830.13 760.69
(i) Intangible assets 39.77 3424
(ili) Capital Work in Progess 326.10 -
(iv) Intangible assets under Development 32943 68.10
(b)  Non current investments 12 525 525
(c)  Deferred tax assets (net) 13 545.04 865.53
(d) ~ Long term loans and advances 14 - 137.16
(¢)  Other Non Current assets 15 693.51 938.65
Current Assets
(a)  Current investments 12.1 3433 33.49
(b)  Trade receivables 16 4,62531 3,887.30
(¢)  Cash and Cash equivalents 17 5,893.47 4,536.52
(d)  Short term loans and advances 18 705.02 975.29
(e)  Other Current assets 19 1,135.77 1,838.83
TOTAL 15,763.13 14,081,05
Significant Accounting Policies 1
And Notes to accounts form an integral part of Consolidated Financial Statements 2tod5

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

For S S Kothari Mehta & Company J K Technosoft Limited
Chartered Accountants
FRN.000756N \j&
b
N o = Er ™ ST

en Aggarwal Satish Chandra Gupta Partho Pratim Kar
Partner Director Director
M.No. 094380 : 01595040 DIN: 00508567
Place : New Delhi
Date :22-Jun-2022 e o

P =
M, Natarajin Saiyad Amir

Senior V.P. Finance

Company Secretary
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1 K Technosoft Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

Revenue from Operations
Other Income
A.TOTAL INCOME ( I+11)

Expenses:

(a) Costof Services

(b) Employee Benefit Expenses

(¢) Finance Costs

(d)  Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
(¢)  Other Expenses

B. TOTAL EXPENSES

Profit before Extraordinary Items & Tax (A-B)
Extraordinary Items

Profit before Tax (IV-V)

Tax Expenses

(a)  Current Tax

(b)  Deferred Tax

(c) Income Tax Adjustment

(d)  Mat Credit Reversal/(Entitlement)

Profit for the year before Minority Interest (VI - VII)

Less: Share of profit/(loss) of Minority

Profit for the year (VIII-IX)

Earnings per Equity Share:
(a) Basic
(b) Diluted

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE ATTACHED HEREWITH

For S S Kothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN.000756N

véeen Aggarwal
Partner
M.No. 094380
Place : New Delhi
Date : 22-Jun-2022

JK Technosoft Limited

Note YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
20 25,911.23 23,603.06
21 533.28 743 .82
26,444.51 24,346.88
2 47.79 45.60
23 18,570.30 16,173.21
24 15.27 132.55
25 257.47 271.92
26 4,884 .46 4,553.30
23,775.29 21,176.58
2,669.22 3,170.30
28 - 850.80
2,669.22 2,319.50
594,08 922,67
420,04 (278.96)
(351.43) 8.87
- (14.85)
2,006.53 1,681.77
- (0.78)
2,006.53 1,682.55
33
25.89 30.07
25.89 30.07
For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
J K Technosoft Limited
\ v
4 L & A ‘?‘[

Satish Chandra Gupta
Director
: 01595040

ataFgjan
Senior V.P. Finance

o Pratim Kar
Director
DIN: 00508567

/_h’.
Tl
Saiyad Amir

Company Secretary
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J K Technosoft Limited

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the period ended March 31, 2022

PARTICULARS

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Profit Before Tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation

Foreign currency fluctuation reserve

Dividend income

Foreign exchange gain uneamed

Loss on sale of assets

Loss on assets written off’

Loss of Liquidation of Subsidiary

Bad debts written off’

Provision of doubtful debts

Provision of loans & Advances

Interest expenses

Interest income

Losses on acquisition of subsidiary (minority share)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes

Change in Working Capital

Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in Operating Assets/ Liabilities
Changes In other Current Assets
Changes In long term provisions
Changes In Short term provisions
Changes In Trade Receivable
Changes in other current Liabilities
Changes In Short term Loan and advances
Changes In Non Other Current Assels
Changes in long term loans and advances
Changes In Trade and Other Payables

Cash Generated from operations

Less: Direct Tax Paid

Net Cash flow from Operating Activities (A)

B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchase of fixed assets
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Capital work in progess
Intangible assets under Development
Dividend Income
Interest Income
Fixed Deposits/ Margin Money
Purchase of Current Investments

Net Cash flow from Investing Activity (B)

C. Cash flow from Financing Activities

Repayment of short term borrowings

Repayment of long term borrowings

Interest Paid

Proceeds from fresh issue of equity shares

Proceeds from share premium of issue of equity shares
Net Cash flow from Financing A ctivity (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalent during the year (A+B+C)

Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the year
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the end of the year

Balance as per Balance Sheet
Less: deposits pledged against Margin Money and fixed deposits with bank
Balance as per Cash flow statement

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE ATTACHED HEREWITH
For § § Kothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants

000756N

N

Naveen Aggarwal
Parter
M.No. 094380
Place : New Delhi
Date :22-Jun-2022

JK Technosoft Limited

YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
2,669.22 2,319.50
25747 271.92
7792 (33.19)
(28%) (1.95)
(25.91) (5.33)
- 14.20
- 28.20
110 .
212 24.51
95.21 24966
847 -
1527 132.55
(190.35) (146.77)
E (27.62)
2,907.67 2,825.68
128,93 (632.68)
(52.78) 24151
(348 80) (65.25)
(835.32) 1,417.98
(1,155.93) 1,156.14
261.80 6593
245.14 (256.11)
137.16 (30.27)
180.03 (61.30)
1,467.90 4,661.63
(342.19) (843.94)
1,125.71 3,817.69
(333.40) (199 39)
0.97 57.16
(326.10) -
(261.33) (67.10)
285 1.95
190.35 14677
(3,683.48) (178 84)
(0.83) (18.03)
(4,410.97) (257.48)
(1.02) (987.94)
(24.73) (44.09)
(15.27) (132.55)
310.87 -
688 88 =
958.73 (1,164.58)
(2,326.53) 2,395.63
4.536.52 1,962.04
2,209.99 4,357.67
5,893.47 4,536,52
(3.683.48) (178.85)
2,209.99 4,357.67

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

J K Technosoft Limited

c:"f-“-']'

Satish Chandra Gupta
Director
: 01595040

ﬁ

M. Nlilrljé
Senior V.P. Finance

T

Partho Pratim Kar
Director
DIN: 00508567

b}
gt
Saiyad Amir
Company Secretary
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Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements

1)
L1)

1.2)

iii)

iv)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

JK Technosoft Limited (CIN - U64202DL1988PLC030870) is public limited company having its
registered office at A-2, Local Shopping Complex, Masjid Moth, Greater Kailash - II, New Delhi -
110048 and its corporate office at F-3, Sector 3, Noida 201301. The company has its subsidiary in
UK (JK Tech UK Limited - 100%), US (JK Tech US Inc. - 100%), Bangladesh (JKT Bangladesh
Private Limited- 100%), Bahrain (JKT GCC WLL-98%), Netherlands (JKT Netherlands B.V - step
down subsidiary of the Company and subsidiary of JKXT Europe B.V ) and in India (E Safe Solutions
Pvt Ltd Formerly Known as JKT Learning Solutions Pvt Ltd-90%). The company is into IT Services
(Application Development, Integration & Support, IT Consulting, Mobility, Staff Augmentation,
Portal Services, Hyper automation), Enterprise Solutions (SAP, QAD, Microsoft, Progress,
Mendix, ERP & CRM), Education and Training (IT/Non-IT, Industry Induction and Mobile
Solutions).

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements relate to JK Technosoft Limited ("the company") and its
subsidiary companies ("the group companies") collectively referred to as "the Group". As per
applicable Accounting Standard, foreign subsidiaries are treated as Non-Integral Operation. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies have been combined on a
line-by-line basis by adding together like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Inter-
company balances and transactions and unrealized profits or losses have been fully eliminated.

In case of foreign subsidiaries, being non-integral foreign operation, revenue items are
consolidated at the average rate prevailing during the year. All assets and liabilities are converted
at rates prevailing at the end of the year. Any exchange difference arising on consolidation is
recognised in the Exchange Fluctuation Reserve.

As far as possible, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform
accounting policies, like transaction and events in similar circumstances and are presented to the
extent possible, in the same manner as the Company’s separate financial statements.

The excess of the cost to the parent of its investments in a subsidiary over the parent’s portion of
equity at the date on which investment in the subsidiary is made, is recognized as ‘Goodwill (on
consolidation)’. When the cost to the parent of its investment in a subsidiary is less than the
parent’s portion of equity of the subsidiary at the date on which investment in the subsidiary is
made, the difference is treated as ‘Capital Reserve (on consolidation)’ in the consolidated financial
statements.

v) Minority interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries consists of the amount of equity

attributable to the minority shareholders at the dates on which investments in the subsidiary
companies are made and further movements in their share in the equity, subsequent to the dates of
investments.
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C. REVENUE RECOGNITION

The group derives its revenues primarily from software services. Revenue from software
development on time and material basis is recognised as the related services are rendered. Revenue
from fixed price contracts is recognised using the milestone completion certificate as per contract
or work order. Maintenance revenue is recognised over period of maintenance contract. Interest
income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the terms, amount outstanding
and the applicable rate.

Dividend on investment is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established. The
Company is not claiming the benefits of export incentives - SEIS scrips.

D. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT AND CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Property, Plant & Equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if
any. Direct costs are capitalized until such assets are ready for use. Capital work-in-progress, if
any, comprises the cost of fixed assets that are not yet ready for their intended use at the reporting
date.

E. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for acquisition of such assets and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment.

Advances paid towards the acquisition/development of software outstanding at each balance sheet
date is classified as capital advances under other non-financial assets and the cost of assets not put
to use before such date are disclosed under ‘Intangible assets under development’.

F. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
Property, Plant & Equipment

Deprgciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is provided using straight line method as per the
useful life prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013,

Leasehold land is amortized over the primary period of lease.

In respect of Property, Plant & Equipment whose useful life has been revised, the unamortized
depreciable amount is charged over the revised remaining useful life.

Intangible Assets
The intangible assets are amortized over a period of three years based on its estimated useful life
and the amortized period is reviewed by technical experts at the end of each financial year.
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G. IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

The carrying amount of assets, other than inventories is reviewed at each balance sheet date, to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of assets is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised, whenever the carrying amount of assets or its cash generating
units exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net
selling price and value in use which is determined based on the estimated future cash flow
generated from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life,
discounted to their present value.

An impairment loss is reversed, if there has been a change in the estimates made to determine and
recognize the recoverable amount in the earlier year.

H. INVESTMENT

Long term investments are carried at cost after providing for any diminution in value, if such
diminution is of other than temporary in nature.

Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value determined on the basis of each
category of investments.

I. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

i) Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the day of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, remaining unsettled
at the period end are translated at closing rates. The difference in translation of monetary assets
and liabilities and realised gains and losses on foreign currency transactions are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Net Investment in non-integral foreign operation are reported at the
exchange rate at the date of transactions.

ii) In case of foreign subsidiary, the assets and liabilities have been translated into Indian Rupees at
the closing exchange rate at the year end whereas revenues and expenses reflected in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss have been translated into Indian Rupees at monthly
average exchange rate for the reporting period. The resultant translation exchange differences are
accumulated in "Foreign currency translation reserve" to be recognised as income or expense in
the period in which net investment in concerned foreign subsidiary is disposed off.

J. FORWARD AND DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

The Company and/or its Indian Subsidiary has entered foreign exchange forward and derivative
contracts to hedge its exposures to movements in foreign exchange rates. The uses of these foreign
exchange forward and derivative contracts reduces the risk or cost to the company and the
Company does not use the foreign exchange forward contracts or options for trading or speculative
purposes.

The premium/ discount arising at the inception of the contract is recognised over the tenor of the
contract period. The exchange difference arising on actual payment/ realization of forward contract
are adjusted in profit and loss account. The difference between the year end rate and the rate on
the date of forward contract/ option, lying at the year end, are recognised at Mark to Market
valpation basis and are adjusted in profit and loss account.
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K. INCOME TAX

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in
accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other
applicable tax laws. Tax expenses relating to foreign subsidiaries are determined in accordance
with tax laws applicable in countries where such subsidiaries are domiciled. Advance taxes and
provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet after off-setting advance tax
paid and income tax provision arising in the same tax jurisdiction for relevant tax paying units and
where the Group is able to and intends to settle the assets and liability on a net basis.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic
benefits in the form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there
is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is
recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet where it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with it will flow to the Group.

Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences between the accounting income and the taxable
income for the year and quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted
as on the balance sheet date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all timing differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is a reasonable certainty that assets can
be realized in future, However, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward of losses
and item related to capital losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is a virtual
certainty supported by convincing evidence of realization of such assets. Deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities have been offset wherever the Group has a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities relating to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority.

L. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Gratuity

The Group provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees
as per the applicable laws of respective countries. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum
payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment,

of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure of employment with the
company.

Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation, performed by
an independent actuary, at each Balance Sheet date using the projected unit credit method. The
Company fully contributes all ascertained liabilities to the JK Informatics Limited Employee
Group Gratuity Trust. Trustees administer contributions made to the Trust and contributions are
invested in a scheme with Life Insurance Corporation of India, as permitted by law of India. The
Company recognised the net obligation of the gratuity plan in the Balance Sheet as an asset or
liability, respectively in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 15, "Employee Benefits".
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumption are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.

T
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Provident fund

Eligible employees receive benefits from a provident fund, which is a defined benefit plan. Both
the employee and the Company make monthly contributions to the provident fund plan equal to
a specified percentage of the employee's salary. The Company contributes a portion to the JK
Companies Officers Provident Trust. The trust invests in specific designated instruments as
permitted by Indian law. The remaining portion is contributed to the government administered
pension fund (RPFC, Delhi). The rate at which the annual interest is payable to the beneficiaries
by the trust is being administered by the government. The Company has an obligation to make
good the shortfall, if any, between the return from investments of the trust and the notified interest
rate. In one of the subsidiary Diensten Tech Limited (Formally known as JKT Consulting
Limited), the provident fund is directly contributed through Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner. (RPFC, Noida, Uttar Pradesh).

Compensated absence

The employees are entitled to compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-
accumulating in nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absence is determined
by actuarial valuation using projected unit credit method on the additional amount expected to be
paid/ availed as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the Balance Sheet date.
Expenses on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognised in the period in which the
absence occurs.

Employee Stock option plan

Accounting value of stock option is determined on the basis of "Intrinsic Value" and Exercise
Price per option shall be determined by the Board which shall not be lesser than the face value
and not higher than the fair market value (FMV) of the share as on date of grant of such option.
The specific Exercise Price shall be intimated to the Option Grantee in the Grant Letter at the
time of Grant.

M. LEASES

As per applicable laws of respective countries, Leases where the lessor effectively retains
substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased assets are recognised as operating

leases. Operating Lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss
on Straight Line Method.

Assets leased by the Company in its capacity as lessee where substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership vest in the Company are classified as finance lease. Such leases are capitalized at the
inception of the lease and charged off in accordance with the applicable terms/ years of lease.

N. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past events and it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which
a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not discounted to
their present value and are determined based on best estimates required to settle the obligation at
the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect
the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes
to accounts. A contingent asset is neither recognised nor disclosed in financial statements.
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EARNING PER SHARE

As per applicable laws of respective companies, basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference
dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period.

Accordingly, diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the he net profit or loss for the
period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable
taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earning per
share and also the weighted average number of equity share that could have been issued upon
conversion of all dilutive potential shares, if any.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

Cash comprises cash in hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term
balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition) and which
are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Consolidated Cash Flows are reported using indirect method, whereby the Profit before tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or
future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expense associated with investing
or financing cash flows. The Consolidated cash flows of the Group from operating, investing and
financing activities are segregated.

BORROWING COST

Borrowing cost attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets is capitalized as

a part of those assets. Other Borrowing Costs are recognized as an expense in the period to which
they relate.

IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL

Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis and whenever there is an indication that the
recoverable amount of a cash generating unit (CGU) is less than its carrying amount. For the
impairment test, goodwill is allocated to the CGU or groups of CGUs which benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition and which represent the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes. The recoverable amount of CGUs is determined based on
higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell.
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Asat Asut
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

1) SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised
25,000,000 (March 31,2021~ 15,000,000) Equity Sharcs of Rs 10/ 2,500 1,500
a)  Reconciliation of number of Shares
Equity Shares (No.)
At the Beginning of the year 1,50,00,000 1,50,00,000
Increuse during the year 1,00,00,000 .
Outstanding al the end of year 2.50,00,000 1.50.00.060

Reconciliation of Share Capital (Amount)
Equity Shares (Amount)

Al the Begmning of the year 1,500 1,500

Increase during the year 1,000 -

Outstanding at the end of year 2500 1,500
b)  lsmed, subscribed and fully paid-up

55,94 878 (March 31, 2021 - 55,94,878) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ 55949 55949

Reconciliation of number of Shares

Equity Shares (No.)

At the Beginning of the year 55,.94.878 55.94.878

Issued during the year - 5

Outstanding at the end of year 55,94,878 55,94,878

Reconciliation of Share Capital (Amount)
Equity Shares (Amount)

At the Beginning of the year 55949 55949
Issued during the year - -
Outstunding ut the end of year 55949 559.49
Issued, subscribed and partly paid-up

12434724 Shares @ 10/- pach and called up @ 2.5 each 31087 -
Reconciliation of Partly Puld up number of shares

Equity Shares (No.)

At the Beginming of the year = =
Issued during the year 1,2434.724 -
Outstanding al the end of year 1.2434.724 .

Reconciliation of Partly Paid up Share Capital (A mount)
Equity Shares (Amount)

Al the Boginning of the year . .
Issued during the year 31087 o
Outstanding at the end of year 31087

§70.36 559,49

No class of shares have been alloted other than cash by the Company during the five vears immediately preceding the current year
No class of shares have been bought back by the Company during the five years tmmediatcly preceding the current vear
There are na securities that are convertible into Equity Shares.

)
(i) Increase in Authorised Capital
During the financial year 2021-22. the suthorised equity share capital of the company was mcreased vide spproval of share holders of the Company dated April 8, 2021 and November 25, 2021 from
Rs 1,500 Lakh divided into 15000000 equity shares @ 10/- each to Rs: 2000 Laks divided into 20000000 equity shares of Rs. 10/~ cach and Rs. 2.500 Lakh divided into 25000000 equity shares @ Rs.
10/- each respectively.

(i) Right Issue
The Board of Directors of the company on March 12, 2021 approved fund raising by way of right issue and on approved issued of 12434724 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/~ cach equity share of
face value of Ra. 10/~ (Right Equily Share) at x price of Rs. 8042 per night equity share meluding premium of Rs. 70.42 per right equity share aggregaling o Rs 10,000 Lakh m the ratio of 222 nght
equity shares for every One existing fully paid up shares held by the eligible equity share holders as on record date March 12,2021 on July 22, 2021 the company approved allotment of 12434714 nght
equity shares of face value of Rs 10/ each to cligible applicants right equity shares were allotted as a pardy pard up for an amownt of Rs, 8.04 per nght equity share recerved on apphcation (of which Rs
2 50 was lowards face value and Rs 5.54 was towards premium)

d)  Termal right attached to the Equity Shares
The company has only vne class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share, Each holder of equity shares 15 entitled 10 une vole per share. The compuny declares and pays dividend in Indian
Rupees.

In the event of Liquidation of the company, the holders of equity share will be entitled to receive rematning assets of the Company, afler distribution of all preferential amounts, if any. The distribution will
be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

¢ ESOP:
During the year the Company has launched JK TECHNOSOFT ~ Eatployee Stock Optiun Plan 2021, Same Plan was approved by Board and Shareholders on September 2, 2021 The prumary objective
of the plan is 1o reward key employees for their jon, dedi and contribution 1o the goals of the Company
Total number of options approved under the plan 2600000
(Twenty=six lacs oplions).
Vesting requirements:

Options granted under ESOP 2021 shall vest nol carlier than the munimum peniod of | (ane) year and not later than the maximum period of 5 (five) years from the date of Grant The Hoard ai its
discretion may grant Option specifying Vesting Period ranging from munimim and maximum period as afore staled. Provided that in case where Options are granted by the Company under the Plan
lieu of Option held by a person under a similar plan in another company (Transferor Company) which has merged or amalgamated with the Compary, the period during which the Option granted by the
Transferor Company were held by him shall be adjusted against the minsmum Vesting Perod required under this Sub-clause

Excrcise Price:

The Exercisc Price per Option shall be determined by the Board which shall not be lesser than the face value and not higher than the Fair Market Value (FMV) of the Share as on date of Grant of such
Option The specific Exercise Price shall be intimated io the Option Grantee in the Grant Letter at the time of Grant

Method to use Account for ESOP: Intrinsic

Expenses that would have been debited in statement of profit and
loss if the Company has adopted fair value accounting: Rs
§20.32 Lakhs
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Fair Value of Shures

Th:mehnmedlmmumlﬂhmmlmMrka.\mnhfu‘d:mmhmnrhn\'nh:nfﬂwu For meome Approach. the Company

WACC of 15.77%.

Fair Value of Option

The Company has used Black Scholes Model for arriving at the fair value of Stock Option.

) Details of Sharcholders holding more than 5% sharss in the Company

‘has considered & Risk Free Rate of 6 34%. and

As st March 31, 2022

pR—— B L

As ai March 31, 2021

Boquliy Share of Ra. 10 Pach No.of Shares % held No. of Shares  held
Dwariksdhish Finance & Investment Co. Pvt Ltd 15,96,000 2853% 15,96,000 2853%
Manphul Trading & Finance Co.Pvt. Lid 12,65,950 22.63% 11,65.950 2263%
JK Infrastructure & Developers Pvi. Ltd. 7,30,000 13.05% 730,000 13.05%
Neelkhanth Mercantile Pyt Lid 6,58.500 117% 6,58,500 11.77%
Akshyapatra Finance & Investment Pt Lid 4,97,500 8.89% 4,97,500 BEY%
JK Consultancy and Services Pvt. Lid 3,00,000 5.36% 3,00,000 5.36%
€)  Details of Promaters holding in the Compuny
Asat March 31, 2021 As at_March 31, 2021
|Promoter' Name No. of Shares | % of total shares % of change No. of Shares | % of total chares held | % of change during
held during the year Pt poar
| Dwankadhish Fipance & Investment Co Pl 15,96,000 28 53%| No Change 13,96,000 1853% No Change
|Manpbwi Trading & Finance Co.Pvt. Lud _12,65,950 1263%|  NoChange 12,65,950 2263% 0.77%
K Infrasiructure & Pt Lid 7,30,000 13.05%| _ NoClangs 7,30,000 13.05%]  NoChange |
Neelkhanth Mercantile Pyt Lid 658,500 1177%] Mo Change 6,58,500 1177%]  MNoChange |
[Akshyspatra Fimance & Investment Pyt Lid 457,500 839%|  NoChange 4,97,500 889%|  NoChange |
TK Consultancy and Services Pyt Lid 3,00,000 5 36%]  No Change 3,00,000 536%| NoChange |
Udbhav Finance & Investment Co. Pyt Lid 5,000 0.09%| _No Change 5,000 0.09%; NoChange |
Abtushek Snghama 215,804 386%] Mo Change 2.15,804 3 86% 0.26%
Manorama Singhania 10,000 0.18%| Mo Change 10,000 018%]  NoChange |
Vasshs Singhunia 10,000 0.18%| _ No Change 10,000 0.18%) No Change |
PGA Securities Pt Lid 100,000 1.79%]  No Changs 100,000 1.79%) No Change
)  Details of Shares held by the promotors for aid u shares
Promoter’ Name As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
No. of Shares | % of total shares % of change No. of Shares | % of total shares held | % of change during
held the year
Abhishek a 12347272 9930%|  99.30% - - No Change |
Varsha Singhania 12,235 0.18% 0.18% - - NoChange |
3) RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Asat Asal
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Prafit and Loss
As per Last Balance Sheet 7.976.77 632184
Add: Profit for the year before Minarity Interest 2,006.53 1,681.77
Add: Movement of losses oo cessation of subsidiary Lo .
Add: Minority Interest in Loss - 0.78
Add: Minoritv share in accumulated losses of subsidiary acquired (refer note 4) 18.86 (2762)
10,083.26 7.976.77
Securities Premium Account
Balance as at Beginning of the year - .
Add: Securitics Premium (Partly paid up Equity Shares) 688 88 -
XD 5
Forelgn Currency Translation Reserve
Opening balance 259.16 292.34
Add/(Less): Addivon/(Deleton) dunng the vear 77.94 (33.19)
Closing balance 337.10 15916
TOTAL 11,009.24 §,235.91
4) Minority Interest
Asat Asal
B [P
Opening balance 18.86 19.64
Add/ (Less). Addition/(Deletion) duning the year - (2762)
Less: Share of Minonity in loss = (0.78)
Share of minority debited/(credited) to reserve and swplus (18 BG) 27.62
Closing balance B 15.86
5) LONG TERM BORROWINGS
Axat Axat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Secured
Vehicle Loan from Bank 6342 8918
Less: Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowmg (24.73) (35.75)
38.69 63.43
Interest Rate, Tenure and EMI of above loans are as per details below:
Date of
Bank Name Nature Rate Tenure EMI commencement of Date of Closure
Repayment
Kotak Mahindrs Bank Lid Vehicle Loan 977% 60 Months 0.45 05-11-2016 05-10-2021
HDFC Bank Lumted Vehicle Loan 500% 60 Months 1.66 0702:2019 07-01-2024
ICICI Bank Limited Vehicle Loan 8.00% 60 Months 077 01-01-2021 01-12-20235

There is no default in repayment of principal loan or interest thereon.

Repayment Schedule

Vear Amount
2022-23 2471
2023-24 2364
2024-25 B34
2025-26 671
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6) LONG TERM PROVISIONS

As ut As at
—March31,202 _ March3t20m
Provision for Lease Equalization 2491 6934
Provision for cmployee benefits
Gratuty (Refer Note 29 1) 62084 63947
Leave encashment (Refer Note 293) 60630 59622
TOTAL 1,251.25 1,305.03
7) SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Asal Asul
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Secured
Current maturities of Long term borrewings
Vehicle Loan from Banks 2473 2575
2473 N
¥) TRADE PAYABLES
Asat Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2011
kabﬁunIMSmI]mmmm(Rcfn&uﬂ:ymmubi:Beth 11314 55
Trade Payable other than Micro and Small Enterpriscs 489 52 348.08
TOTAL 602.66 42263
Outstanding for following period from the due date of (5
Less than | Year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
101 99 - 1115 - 113 14
488 84 - 068 - 489 52
590.83 - 11,83 - 602.66
Outstanding for ful riod from the due date of s
Less than | Year 1-2 yeurs 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
63 40 - 1115 - 7435
34726 0.82 - = 34808
410.66 0.82 1115 - 422.63
As at Asat
i i) March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1. Principal amount remai o hier as at the end of the year 113.14 7433
2. Interest due thercon remaini id o anv et 85 at the end of the ing Year - -
3 nummuurmlp.idbyhomnymumnfm 16, of MSMED Act, 2006, slong with the amounts of the payment made o the
iers beyond the unied day during the year = -
4 The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have hempudh:beymdlbnmnlnddryﬁmdu
but withoul a the interest fied under Micro, Small and Medium Act, 2006, - -
i yeor ol
payable even in the succeeding period. until such date when the interest ducs as above are actually paid to the
of disallowance of s deductible expenditure under section 23 of MSMED Act, 2006 - -
%) OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Asat Arat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Ini:rm_aa:modhnmldmmbunmngx 040 0.33
Salary payable 9542 91871
Payable to employees - 14397
Advance from customers - 302
Sttulory dues payable 686,99 55080
Other payables 983 59 1,305.90
TOTAL 1,766.80 292273
10) SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
Asut Axat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (Refer note 29.1)* 4078 61,74
Leave encashment(Refer note 29.3) 13762 13078
Provision for income tax (Less: advance tax and TDS) - 33472
TOTAL 178.40 $17.11

* Provision for grafuity is shown as net of plan assets and present value of defined benefit obhgaton as fully detailed in note 29

(This page is wntentionally left blak)

hny

i



Ny g

- - 0189 EE19T ssardold uiaaloig
ABIX
LU £ ueyg) IO dB3 X £ 1B T-1 aedk ] UByYy} §597]
ZZOT/EO/1€ J0 poraad © 10) JJALD U UROWY
Jnpayas suldy Juamdojaaa( 13pun $)IssE qISuEIu]
0197 = ¥ = 01'9ZE ssaIgol g ul 3aalo1g
FTETY
105 € uey)aiop 1BIA €-T aeax -1 1824 | uey ss9]
ZZO/E0/1€ J0 portad B 10§ JIAD Ul junowy dIMD
ANPAPS FuISY JIMD
€p'STS'1 0L'8S8 69881 9€81 L¥'LST £F'E08 PL'ERE'T 0T'LET = 7€°61 6L'ELG L¥'999'T @+ )+ @+ (V) moL
£F6TE " = A o - EF'6lE ] = = £€19T 0189 (@) &0 qus
£V 6LE = = C £ = EV 6TE e = = ££19C 0189 Juawdojaaa(] 12pup) SIASSY I|qIBuEIU]
1207°%0°10
TZOT'E0°1E uo | ZZOT'E0'1E 1O sIjes 104 aeak TWOTE01E I 1Z0T'¥0°10
aunsnl| uo se d I
se yoorg 1N | se daq g [ *TEPY | daqssa | aws a0 dog A | e yaorg 5019 wamsnfpy | eS| wOmIPRY | L o o s1assy apqidusug
PAEINWNIDY
LL6E ¥L'98 - = (4844 w9 157921 = = S8°67 99'96 (D) 1m0 qng
LL'6E ¥L98 = 2 (A% 44 w9 15921 = o €86C 9996 aremyjog 1andwo))
120T%0°10
TTOT'E€0°1€ WO [ ZZOTED'TE WO f SajeS 20,4 1eak 4 TTOTEO'IEI® 120Tv0°10
se yao1g 19N | 5B daq 1melL o i dagg ssa1 | ay 40y dog s Mo SE Joo|g $5045 Jemealyy b uontppy JE SE }do|g §S015) spssy aumausyey
PAEMWNIIY
01°97¢ d = - s = 0192¢ = C a2 01'97€ - (@) 1®10L qns
01'9Z¢ = = b - - 019T¢ = = d 0192 - dIMD
Z70Z°€0°T€ U0 | ZZ0Z'€0"1€ uo | Jwamnedmy | $I[ES 104 avak ~MM Ms!.“vﬁn.” ZZ0T'e0" 1€ [puaanpedury/o —— .- — 120T°+0°'10 5 i
seyoopg 12N | sedagierol | wocdaq ‘daq ssa] | agy aoyg daq SRS SE I0[g §5045) UM 2 Py I’S WPPY | ¢ s yoopg ssoasn mamdgnby pus jusy ‘aadosg
£1°0€8 96°ILL 69881 9€81 S1'EET 10°T#L 1L° 1091 0TLET - €61 75'95€ 1L° 1051 (v) 1810, qng
8¥'1TI1 16201 = £EL [4 X4 ELLY 6€ ¥TL ® = L'l 009 11922 SIYDIY2A
1L'E9 99v¥ L6'SS L¥L 9£91 vL16 LES0I ETOL = 98'L 6V S¥ L69¥%] siawdinby % jueld
S10 s0'1 £5°T1 S6'¢E £5°0 0991 18°0 LEE] = yL'E 800 ¥8LI wawdmnbg 29150
1L°81 EL'8E £8°01 = 899 LBTY EVLS S091 = T ¥L'S SL'LY 124138
LET 6201 ¥6901 = Z6'L 1£601 99°1¢ SSIEl = = 0£'C 16051 UTYX1, 2 MyIWIn,j
B6'EVE 9% 96% (444 - L6ELL LO'OCE SF 08 - - . L1'8LT 87'T9S s1aindwo)
TLLST T6TL g : S6'¥% L6L9 ¥9 0EE 5 = : yL 81 0611¢ suippng
C0El ¥ ¥ L - (14 Ly 96'L1 2 - - - 96'L1 pUE PjOYasE]
1Z0TF0°10
ZZOT'€0°1E U0 | ZZOT'€0°1€ Uo ymamneduy | speg 104 B2k d ZZ07°€0°1€ 18 uamneduypo 1Z0T°¥0° 10
M ‘
se yooig 1PN | se dag 1®oL uo “daq ‘daqg ssay | aqp a0y daq _.o.“”._”.aE.HM{ S€ }20[g 55045 UM ARRRIEIEY. SIS woRiEPY 1E SE 20| 55045 Juamdiaby pre jumy ‘faadory

syasse qiSuryu] pue yuamdinby pue juely ‘Aaadoig - 11 NoN

Py Josounan L, Mr

FNCATE BT BN

HI3IDIM




A

01’89 = = & 0189 §5313014 u1 1pafo1g
FTEYY
&0 £ URy) 230y ELEP W xrd dEIA 771 P17y I ue mnu\—
1Z0Z/€0/ 1€ Jo poriad ® d0jy g1m)) unjunoury
Anpays Juidy yuamdojpaaq Japun siasse s|qIBuE U]
2 = - - - ssaidold u1 pafoig
T
EIoL| ¢ ueyg) a0y FeIX £-T JBIA 7-1| 4wk | uey) ssa
1Z0Z/£0/1€ J0 pouad & Joj g1 D) ujunomry dIMD
npaps FuEY JImMD
£0°€98 £5°T08 SB'LLS TT'sog 6147 65" FIF'1 L¥'999'1 0T°L09 BSOLE £9'892 9°18€°7 |E)0) pue.ir)
01°89 - 5 - - = 01’89 = - 01’89 - TVLOL
0189 ® - . S = 0189 = = 0189 & 1uawdoPA3(] J2pun sjasse a|qiFueiu]
£6'F6L £5°708 SB'LLS ZTS0E 6°1LT 65°FIF'1 LE'B6S'T 0Z'L09 8S'9LE £5°002 9°18€'T 810, puets)
4443 r'79 68°EIE - oF'LT 16°8FE 99'9%6 19'91¢ . 19°0T 98°76€ TVLOL
{443 [A&4) 68 €1€ 0v LT 16°8¥¢ 9996 7991¢ 2 1¥'0Z 98°Z6t aremyog wndwo))
’ —_— 070T'F0°T0 yuamsnlpe/ju
1Z0T°€0° L€ IOTEOIE |\ cnppy | 1S 40d ek -G WOTEOTE | nsdmppo| o — 02077010
uo seojg 13N | wo se 'daq peio] dagssay | ayaog daq ——— L L) .ﬁa._..}—’.ﬁ S nPPY JE SE 3201 $5045) SLASSV AHL A0 IWVN
S)ISSY IqIFuEjuy
69'09L ZrivL L6'€97 TT°s0f IS°Prl 895901 1L108'1 8S'06T 85°9LE 117081 9L°BE6"1 TVLOL
BEBET €L°L8 - ST'LT 1€0T L9'¥6 11'92T = £59F 6L9F S8SIT SO[PIYAA
£T°SS ¥8'16 ¥0°08 0997 8L°0T 09°L¥I L6V 69°CS 6L°0% 9L E8'TET siuawdmnby 2 wejq
09°1¥ 1£°601 9r'18 13834 LT'E1 17122 16051 £S'8L 61'0% 5 £9°6LT AIMIX1] 79 Umrwn,g
60°1 16€1 P6'C ¥s'C ¥LO $9°'81 1061 EZ'L L9T S 16 ¥C luswdmby 2 sFumig [edwndag
yI°0 697 LYE 860 £20 1L £8°7 98'€ [ = 16L swysAg dunydrg aing
L8¥T LY'TF ¥6'S9 = 06'L 76001 SL'LY £CT0L % e'l S9'9¢1 SuppomiaN % Joaseg 1indwo)y
1Tt LO0ZE 11°09 10°%02 EI9L1 90 80¥ 8T'T9¢ ¥0'8L 81°6¥T 8E ¥ 9L RMPIRH - SwsAG 1ndwo))
£6°EFL L6'LY9 & 2 S6F C0'E9 06'11E - ¥ # 06'11¢E Suipning
PZEl [N - - 720 05¥ 96'L1 - - - 96 L1 puE] ployasear]
10T €0° 1€ 170T°€0°1E ERILISEL | aeaf siisre tn 120T°€0°1€ PO
uo seydopg 1N | wo se 'daq jeyo gy daqq ssoq 2y 104 ‘dagq _uu.““_ﬂ..”..n.wm«. 1B SE }o0|g S50.15) iy b Lo TRnIPRY 1® hn.._.mev_.na “M.Eu SLASSY JHL 40 TWVN

PN 1j050UIS L S

s1asse d|qiuriu] pue juamdiby pue juryg “Kaadorg - 1] NoN

Py yjosouy ] o

EAE P B

HO3LIM



JICTECH

O

12) NON CURRENT INVESTMENT

Long Term Trade [nvestments - carried at cost
In Mutual Fund - Quoted fully paid up
JM Basic Fund- Growth Option (246)
17996.708 units of Rs. 13.7903/- Each

In Equity Shares - Quoted fully paid up
Reliance Industries Limited
400 (PY 200) Shares of Rs 10/ (PY Rs 10/-)
JAY KAY Enterprises Limited (Earlier JK Synthetics Limited)
12,538 (PY 12.538) Shares of Rs 1/~ (PY Rs 1/-)

TOTAL

Aggregate amount of Quoted Investment

Market Value of Quoted Invesiment

Aggregate amount of Non - Quoted Investment

Aggregale provision for diminution in the value of Investment

11.1) CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Investment in Equity shares (Quoted)

JK Tyre and Industries

5650 (PY « 5650) shares of Rs. 2 each of
Coal India Limited

15500 (PY ' 15500) shares of Rs. 10 each
Vodafone [dea Limited

150000 shares of Rs. 10 cach of

Easy Trip Planners Limited

3300 (PY : Nil) shares of Rs 438.85 cach of

TOTAL

Aggregate amount of Quoted Investment
Market Value of Quoted Investment
(Valued at lawer of cost of Market Value)

13) DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)

Deferred tax labilities

Depreciation and amortisation

Profit on forward cover M2M

Deferred tax assets

Employees benefils

Provisions for doubtful debis & advances
Impairment of fixed asscls

Unabsorbed loss

Lease equalization reserve

Deferred tax nssets (net)

14) LONG TERM LOAN AND ADVANCES

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) credit receivable
Other taxes recoverable
TOTAL

15) OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

Fixed Deposits with Banks :

Deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months
Deposits pledged against margin money/security
Cupital advances

Unsecured and Considered Good unless stated otherwise
Security Deposit

Considered Good

Considered Doubtful

Less: Provision for doubtful scourity deposits

'OTAL

As at Asxut
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
148 248
264 164
013 013
525 5.25
5.25 5.25
27.29 2046
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Asat Adat
March 31, 1012 March 31, 2011
229 229
1736 17.55
5 1365
14.48 o
34.33 33.49
343 3349
57.50 3950
As at Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
29.68 408
647 (130)
35405 39970
3257 40371
1282 &
1613 =
626 20.19
54504 865.53
As at Anal
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
92 86
> 4430
z 137.16
Asat Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
409 84 38572
6549 6749
¥ 000
21418 23544
165 5.54
{165 (5.54)
214,18 23544
693.51 938.65

K T
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16) TRADE RECEIVABLES

(This page is intentionally lefi blank)

Asat As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Others receivables
Considered good 4625131 388651
Considered doubtful 96 04 22803
Less: Provision doubtful debis (96 04) (22716)
TOTAL 4,625.31 3887.30
Trade Recetvable Aging
Outstanding for & period as on 31.03.2022 from due date of pa;
Particulars Nut Due Less than 6months |6 menths - | year |1 -3 vears More than 3 years Grand Tutal
Undisputed Trade receivables
considered good 306613 1,287.49 19474 2196 53.00 4,625.31
Undispuled Trade
Receivable considered doubtful - 158 5074 2999 203 B4.34
Disputed Trade Recevables
considered doubtful - 1169 = - = 11.69
Disputed Trade Receivables
considered - - - - - -
Grand Total 3,066.13 1,300.77 145.49 53.94 55.03 4,721.35
Outstanding for & perivd as vn 31.03.2021 from due date of payment
Purticulary Not Due Less than 6months Grand Total
Undisputed Trade receivablcs
considered good 2.762.30 917.00 11422 37.95 5503 388651
Undisputed Trade
Receivable considered doubtful - 9 B8 007 215.71 139 218.08
Disputed Trade Reccivables
considered doubtful - 3 = s N s
Disputed Trade Receivables
considered - - - - - -
Grand Total 2,762.30 92688 114.29 153.66 £7.42 4,114.56
17) CASH AND BANK BALANCE
Asat Asat
__March3),3033  Marchii2on
Cash and Cush Equivalents
Balance with Banks 2,20999 435875
Less: Provision far Bank Balance® - (146)
Cash mn hand - 039
Other Bank Balances 1.209.59 4357 68
Fixed Deposit with Bank
Deposil with origmal maturity less than 12 months 357754 8593
Deposit with origmal maturity more than 12 months - =
Deposits pledged against margin money/security(short term deposits) 103 94 9292
TOTAL £.893.47 4,536.52
SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Asnt Asai
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Unsecured and Considered Good
Loan 1o 8 Body Corporate 2955 500 00
Loans and advences 1o Related Partes (refer note 31)
E-Safe Solutions Pvi Ltd. (formerly JKT Learning Solutions Pvt Lid) 102 .
Less: Provision for bad debt (109 -
Advance lo Vendors/ Supphers/ Others 2181 693
Less: Provision for Advances {0 96)
Security Deposits - 1146
Loan and advances Lo staff (incl. FFS recovery) 4570 2576
Less: Provision for advance to stall (29.14) (20.20)
Balance with income tax suthorilies 637.10 435230
TOTAL T05.02 975.29
19) OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
As at Asat
March 31, 2022 Murch 31, 2021
Unsecured and Considered Good
Unbilled revenue 882.59 1,35833
Prepaid expenscs 273035 165 16
Reseivable againsi forward contraci 2591 533
Balance with revenue authorities 124 47 2424
Duties and Laxes recoverable 15766 244.16
Interest recervable = W7
Preliminary expenses - 05
Other receivabic 272.09 237
TOTAL 1,735.77 1,838.83

c
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20) REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Income from Services
Information Services and Consulting Services
Domestic 4,966.33 6,02103
Export 18,947 40 16,426.00
Deemed Export (SEZ) 1,390 36 753.22
2530 NS,
Commercial Coaching and Trainng Services
Domestic 42003 31505
— 080 -
P 147 46 5519
Dol R (20) —Sn s
Sale of Hardware and Software
‘Domestie 3B BS 3257
IRAS 31.57
TOTAL 15911.23 _23,603.06
21) OTHER INCOME
Year Ended Year Ended
_ March31,2020 _ March3i,20m1__
R P 19035 14677
Notice period recovery 18.94 684
Exchange Gain(Net) 89.69 401
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets el =
Profit on cessation of subsidiary (Refe 19627 =
Dividend on trade investment 285 195
Excess provision wrilten back = 1484
Miscellancous Income 1387 144
Reimbursement of Expenses 1479 1544
Impect on uequisiton of subsidiary 2 46377
Profit on sale of investment 0.98 2269
Interest income on income tax refund 183 100
Balance writien back 027 1241
Grant income = azes
TOTAL 533.28 743.82
22) Cost of Services
Year Ended Year Ended
_ March31,201_ March3t,on
Cost of Software 3322 Hseo
Others 14.57 =
TOTAL 47.79 45.60
13) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
Year Ended Year Ended
__ March31, 2017 March3l, 200
Salaries and wages 17,253 57 14,985 67
Contribution (o provident and other funds (refer note 29 2) 967.25 74391
Staff welfare expenses 34948 44363
TOTAL 18,570.30 __16,173.21
24) FINANCE COST
Year Ended Year Ended
_ March31,2022 _ March3iaom
Interest Expenses 1527 132.35
TOTAL 15.27 132.55
15) DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES
Year Ended Year Ended
_ March3i, 2022  March3i, 2001
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipments 23315 24432
Amortisaion of Intangible Assels 2432 2740
TOTAL 257.47 171.91
16) OTHER EXPENSES
Asat Year Ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rent 47741 604 95
Professional fee 2,806 62 2,047 46
Electric, Power, Fuel and Water 6323 7623
Travel Expenses - Domestic 16139 59.44
Travel Expenses - Foreign 78.18 3260
Conveyance & Taxi Hire Charges 1013 462
Internet and Networking Expenses 9869 104 22
Insurance Prermum BO2S 3464
Telephanc Expenses 1424 2662
Maintenance Expenises - Office 104 48 12774
Maintenunce Expenses - Computers 12843 21431
Exchange Losses including Loss on Forwurd Contracts 5.06 -
Business Promotion 29.06 077
Advertisement 3750 3317
Audit Foc (Refer Note 34) 13.50 187
Bad Debts 212 2451
Loss on Sale of Fixed Asscts - 1420
Imparment of Assets 5093 -
Loss on asscts Wnitten off - 2820
Loss on saleAaluation of current investments 209% tRl|
Loss an hquidation of subsichary (Refer Note 43) Lo -
Repairs & Mainienance- Plant & Machinery 759 833
Miscellaneous Expenses 153147 18157
Rates and taxes, excluding, taxes on income. 2798 53.29
CSR Expenditure (refes note 27) nn 5.28
Recruitment Expenscs 196.38 4091
Provision for Doubtful Debts 9521 249.66
Bank Guarantee Invoked written off* - 93.05
Cost to Complete Project - 4370
Donation & Chanity 025 125
Bank Charges 535 1250
Inpairment of Goodwill = 401.58
TOTAL 4884.46 4,853.30

* During the financisl year 2020-21 one of
Performance Bank Guarantee Based on the Ti

onitracts entered with the customer EIT services India P. Lid, in which end customer is Government of Kerala of health and farmly welfare has encashed the
a3 company has decided to wnite off such recovery

» w/ W
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27) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

A.lpuSsutimI!Sul‘prui:lAm.l,zilll,ﬂnmhﬁqummﬂ:u!&mumwhhqﬁmmdbth

8)  Amouni required lo be spent during the year

b)  Amount of expenditure incurred

<)  Shortfall at the end of the year

d)  Total of previous years shorifal

€)  Reason for shortfall

f)  Naturc of CSR uctivities*

©  Details of related party wa rust ied by the company as per relévant Accounting Standard

h) M:mnptwwmm:m&:wuh-hﬂnymmwimemmumhprmmmduywdmldb:Mnmw
* Nature of CSR activities are sports related activities.

18) Extraordinary Items

Payment to DGFT Refund
Interest on Payment to DGFT Refund
TOTAL

29) EMPLOYEE DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

129.1 PROVISION FOR GRATUITY

1 Assumptions:
JK Technosaft Ltd
Discount Rate
Rate of Increase in Compensation Levels

Rate of Return on Plan Assels

Il Changes in Present Value of Obligations During the Period
Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning of the period
Interest Cost
Fast Service Cost
Current Scrvice Cost
Benefil Paid
Actuarial (gam}/ loss on obligations
Liability for Diensten Tech Limited
A ot

Present Value of Obligation as at the end of the penod

Il Changes in the Fair value of Plan Assets during the Period
Fuir Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the penod
Expected Return on Plan Assets
Contributions
Benefits Paid
Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) on Plan Assets
Fair Value of Plan Asscts al the end of the period

IV Fair Value of Plan Asscts
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginming of the period
Actual Return on Plan Assels
Contributions
Benefits Paid
Fair value of plan assets at the end of penod

V¥ Expenses recognised in the Profit and Loss Account
Current Service Cost.
Interest Cost
Expected Retumn on Plan Asscls
‘Net acivaral {gain)/ loss recognised in the period
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

VI  Bifurcation of Present value of Obligation at the end of the year as per Schedule IT1 of the Companies Aet, 1013

Current Liability (Short term)
Non-Current Liability (Long term)
Present Value of Obligation as at the end

(This page is intentionally left blank)

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2011
Bnn 928
1322 928
Nil il
Nil Nil
NA NA
NA NA
NA NA
Year Ended Year Ended
__March31,2022  March 31,2021
- 61861
- 23219
= B50.80

For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended

March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
6 86% 657%
10.00% first year. 14 00% first year,
7 50% thereafler 7 50% thereafer
702% 6R4%
T14.32 733.84
4042 IR07
13542 13449
(144.21) (URE)]
(60 BG) (120.95)
(255) -
686.54 T14.32
1310 13.01
146 095
160.64 7231
(14421) (63.61)
(5.80) (9.55)
25.20 13.10
1310 13.01
(4.34) (861)
160.64 7131
(144213 (63.61)
2520 13.10
1397 134.49
4042 807
(1.46) (0.95)
{35.07) (111.40)
123.61 60.21
Asat Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
4079 G174
62084 639.47
661.63 701.21
o

e
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19.1 PROVISION FOR GRATUITY

Asat Asat
In respect of fanded defincd benefit scheme of provident fund (Based on actuarial valuation) March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
The following table sets out the status of Provident Fund as per the actuanal valuation as per the
information available to us.
Assumptions:
Discount Rate 6 86%
Interest rate guaranice 8 10%
Average Historic yield on the Investment 805% B.14%
Summary of Membership Status
Number of employees 1,380 1308
Average age(years) 3176 3259
Expecied average future working life time(ycars) 713 738
Summary of Funds Status
Accurmulated Account value of Employec's Fund 5,464.91 4,72055
Value of Plan Assels 565554 4,B48 55
Emplayer's Contribution during the previous year 51958 46875
Assets and Liability{Balance Sheet Pusition):
Fer the period
i For the period Ending| Endlog
31t Murch, 2022 31st Murch, 2011
Accumulated Account Value of Employee's Fund 546491 4,720.55
Interest Rate Guarantee Liability 9178 n.w
Present Value of Obligation(Total} 5,561.69 4337.65
Value of Plan Asscts 5.655.54 484855
Surplus/(Deficit) 9185 10.90
Numwkhmwhmﬂm-fhc-mw - -
DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS
Asat Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
292 Employer's coniribution o Employee State Insurance and Provident Fund 589.47 481 16
29.3 PROVISION FOR LEAVE ENCASHMENT
 § Assumptions:
JK Technosoft Limited
Discount Rate 6.86% 6.54%
10.0(%% first year, 14.00% first year,
Rate of Increase in Compensation Levels 7.50% fer 7.50% thoroafler
Changes in Present Value of Obligations During the Period (Amount in Rs)
Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning of the period 71697 635.28
Interest Cost 3826 3z
Current Service Cost 203 94 205 87
Acquisition/Business Combmation/Divestiture . -
Benefit Paid (231.80) (125.53)
Actunrial (gain)/ loss on obligations BBO (19.8T)
Liability fur Diensten Tech Limited 2.12) =
Present Value of Obligation ss at the end of the penod Td4.12 726.97
Expenses recognised in the Profit und Loss Account
Current Service Cost 203.94 20887
Interest Cost 3816 i
Net actuanial (gain)/ loss recognised in the period BB6 (19.87T)
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 151.07 pils
Bifurcation of Present vahue of Obligation af the end of the year as per Schedule IT1
Asat Asat
A
of the Campanies Act, 2013 Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current Liability (Short term) 13762 130.75
Non-Current Liability (Long term) 606.50 59621
Present Vahse of Obligation as at the end T44.12 72697

I Technpsoft Limited
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30) SEGMENT REPORTING

The company has identified geographic segments as ils primary scgimenis
Geographic segment of the Company arc United Kingdom, United State of America, India and others.

Year Ended March 31, 2022
Particulars

Revenue & Other Income

Identified Operating Expenses

Cost of Services

Allocable Expenses

Unallocable expenses (net of income)
Segment Results

Less: finance cost

Less: Taxes

Profit aficr Tax

Year Ended March 31, 2021
Particulars

Revenve & Other Income
Identified Operating Expenses
Cost of Services
Allocable Expenses
Unallocable expenses( net of ncome)
Segment Resulis
Less: finance cost
Less:Unallocable Expenses
Taxes
Extraordinary ilems
Profit after Tax

Ax at March 31, 2012
Particular

Scgment Assets
Unallocable Assets
Total Assets

As at Murch 31,2021
Particular

Segment Asscls
Unallocable Assets
Total Assets

As at March 31, 2022

Particular

Segmnt Liabilitics

Unallocable Lubilities

Sharcholders Fund
fincriy

Total Liabilities

As at March 31,2021
Particular

Segment Luabilites
Unallocable Lubuities
Sharcholders Fund
Mumority interest
Total Liabilitics

UK
482538
333183

751.99

T41.56

UK

559216
3,28203

654.68

1,655.44

UK
1,679.62

209938

2,099.38

495,71

Usa

13,038.16
B758.45

#94.03

338568

usa

10,265 28
583280

77457

3,657.92

usa
403117

usa
4,18978

4,189.78

UsA
635.10

213.24

India

7,489.62
6,172.66
4179
6470

1,204.48

India

719549
6814 80

4560
207

159.97

India
1.215.28

1,869 64

1,869.64

1,458.33

1,091.356
35112

3354

706.70

568 56
24359

69.99

154.99

71.58

416135

416.35

2263

Rs)
Total

26,444 51
18.614.06
4779
1,744.26
335393
2,684.48
1527
66269
1,006.53

®s)
Total

23621 49
16173.21
4560
171996
2367 38
331534
14504

637173
85080
1681.77

(Rs)

Total
6.997.65
876548
15,763.13

(Rs)

Total
857516
5,505 90
14,081.06

Rs)
Total
274170
112184
11,899.59

15,763.13

Rs)

Total
1,625 60
364118
8,795 42
18.86
14,081.06

The Company has 1 sinigle business segment as per Accounting Standard 17 dealing with *Segment Reporting” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India: Other than receivables, all other assets
are not assigned lo any Geographies and so shown under Unallocable Assets Simularly all liabihitics are not assigned 1o any Geographies:
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31)

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE
Name of Reluted Partics und description of relationship:
Subsidiary Companies

JK Tech US Inc. (formaily known as Proserve Consulting Inc ), USA
JK Tech UK Limuted (formally known s JK Technosoft (UK) Limited), UK.

Diensten Tech Lumited (Formerly known as JKT Consulting Lumited, ceased 1o be subsidiary w « 2903 2022)
JK Technosoft Gulf LLC. Sultanate of Oman (subsidiary in liquidated w e [ 21.03.2021)

JKT Bangladesh Private Limited, Bangludesh
JKT GCC WLL, Bahrain

E Safe Solutions Pvt Ltd (Formerly Known as JKT Learning Solutions Pvt Lid), India (w e [ July 23rd, 2020)

JKTEwope BV,

JKT Netherland B.V (step down subsidiary of the Company and susbidiary of JKT Europe B V)

Directors

Abhishek Singhania (Dircetor)

N P Agarwal (Dircetor), Resigned w e [ 23th Seplember, 2021
Manecsh Mansmgka (Dircclor)

Partho Pratim Kar (Director)

Vinay Kumar Singhal (Director), Resigned W eI, 18th April, 2021
Vipul Prakash (Director)

Satish Chandra Gupta( Whole Time Durector)

Arvind Thakur (Director), Woe £ 15t June, 2021

Enterprises having common director
‘Wow Saftech Pvt Ltd

Enterprises in which relative of director is a dirctor
Insurencexcellence Advisors Private Limited

Enterprises over which directors have significant influcnce
J. K Cotton Limited
Diensten Tech Limited (formerly known as JKT Consulting Limited)

Enterprises having significant influence over the company
Dwarikashish Finance & Investment Co. Private Limited
Manphul Trading & Finance Co. Private Limnted

Relative to Key Manugement Personnel
Varsha Singhania

Manorama Singhania

Vedang Hari Singhania

Prect Gupls

. Transactions with related parties during FY 2021-22

As disclosed in Consolidated Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account

Description

Enterprises

Personnel

Relattves to Key
Management
Personnel

Remuncration Pald

Satish Chandra Gupta( Whele Time Director)
Saiyad Amir(Company Scoretary)

Preeti Gupta

Vedang Hari Singhania

Sitting Fees

Maneesh Mansmngka (Director)

Arvind Thakur (Director), Wef 1st June, 2021
Professional Charge Paid

Vursha Singhana

Arvind Thakur (Director), W e f 18t June, 2021
‘Wow Softech Private Limited

Sale of Flxed Assets
J K. Cotton Limmted

Purchase of Fixed Assets
Insurencexcellence Advisors Private Limuted

Balunces with related parties as af March 31, 2021
Receivables
J. K. Cotton Limited

352

6.00

463

43.77
36.07
170

3.06
0.56
150

36.00
18.00
18.00

Transactions with related parties during FY 2020-21
As disclosed in Consolidated Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account

Descriptian

Enterprises

Key Management

Personnel

Relatives to Key
Management
Personnel

Remuneration Paid
Satish Chandra Guptal Whole Time Directar)
Saiyad Amur(Company Secretary)

Sitting Feea

Maneesh

Vinay Singhal
Professional Charge Paid

Reimbursement of Expenses
J. K. Cotton Limted

Sale of Fixed Assets
J K. Cotton Limited

Balunces with related partics as at March 31, 2021
|Receivables
] K. Cotton Limited

011

352

465

41.96
4062
134

216
1.08
1.08

9.00

1146
2163
0383
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32) PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Nanse of Entity ].E:_:;:. Rela 3 % of Hulding and voting power as at
i 31032022 Sr03.2001
JK Tech UK Lirmted (formally known as JK Technosoft (UK) Lumited), UK. United K ngdom Subsidiary 100% 100%
JK Tech US Inc. (formally known as Proserve Consulting Inc ), USA Usa Subsidy 100% 100%%
Dicnsten Tech Limited (Formerly known as JKT Consulting Limiled) India Subsidiary - 100%
JK Technosoft Grulf LLC (subsidiary in hquidsted w e 21 03.2021) Oman Subsidiary B 65%
JKT GCC WLL Bahrain Subsidiary 98% 98%
Bangladesh Subsidiary 100% 100%
India Subsidiary 90% %
Netherlands ‘Subsidiary .
Nethalands ‘Subsidbary B .
JKT Europe B.V, subsidiary company incorporated in Netherlands on September 5, 2019. The Company controls the subsidiary compary by virtue of controlling the board of subsidiary company
Additional information as required under Schedule II1 to the companies Act, 2013, of enterprises consolidated as subsidiary /Associalcs
Net Asscts, Le. total asscts minus (otal abilities
As % of
Name of the enticy Comsolidated Net | Amaount (fnRa) | A% % of Consolidated |\ oy gy
Profit or (Loss)
Assets
Parent Company
JK Technosoft Limited T1.02% 7.014 09 9%6% 1.919.44
Indian Subsidiaries
Diensten Tech Limited (Formally known as JKT Consulting Limited) 0.00% - 0% 146
E Safe Solutions Pyt Lid (Formerly Known as JKT Learning Solubions Pyt Lufy -4.52% (446 63) -2% (39.31)
Forcign Subsidiaries
JK Tech US Inc. (formally known as Proserve Consulting Inc ) 2831% 179633 4% (76.53)
JK Tech UK Limuted (formally known as JK Technosoft (UK) Limted) 631%| 62320 -1% (18.53)
JKT Bangladesh Private Limited -0.40% (39.27) -1%| (13.43)
JKT GCC WLL 067% 65.71)| 1% 2554
JKT Netherland B.V (step d ibsidiary of the Company and susbidiary of JKT Europe B.V) -0.06% (5 44)] 1% 1272
Minority Interest 0.00% L 0%, .
Prufit on cessation of subsidiary (Refer Note 43) = - 10es 19627
Loss on liquidation of Subsidiary (Refer Note 43) - - 0%, (1.10)
Total 100.00% 9.876.57 100.00% 1,006.53
33) EARNING PER SHARE
2021-22 2020-21
Profit for the year 2.007 1,682
Amount available for Equity Shares 2,007 1.683
Weighted Average number of Shares 77.49,662 55.94.878
‘Earning per share
Basic 1589 uo?
Diluted 1589 3007
Face Value per share 10,00 10,00
34) AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION® 2011-22 2020-21
Statutory Audit Fee including Tax Audit 1299 17.59
Any other capacity 150 118
Goods and Services Tax 1 88 -
16.37 18,77

* meludes payment Lo auditors of subsdiarics.

In the opinion of the management, current assets and loans & advances have value in realization in ordinary course of business al least cqual to the amount at which they are stated

36) Details of loun and sdvainces given and mvestment made us required to be disclosed a8 per provisions of Section 186 (4) of the Compunies Act, 2013 have been disclosed under the respective head. The

company has nol given any guarantee in respect of loan taken by others

37) Somw of the balance grouped under Trade Receivables. Trade Payables, Loan and Advances recoverable in cash or in kind are subject to confirmation from respective parties. Differences, if any, ansing on

reconciliation of these balances, in the opinion of the will not be ial and will be d for as and when such reconciliations are completed
38) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:
P i As at Asat
3ist March 2022 | 31ss March 2021 |
Contingent Liabilities:
In respect of Income Tax (AY-2009-10) where the company is into appeal before Income Tax Tribunal (ITAT) 187.45 18739
Commitments:
Guarantee bank for customer 23430 28573
39) CAPITAL COMMITMENTS:
Particulars Asat Ax at
31st March 2022 31t March 2021
Capital Commitment
Estimated Amount of Contract i capstal account remaining 1o be executed and not provided for 54.53 150.00
Tatal 54.53 150.00
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41) The Company's significant leasing arrangements are in respect of operating leases for premises. These leasing arrangements which arc not non-cancelluble, range betwoen 11 months and 3 years generally. or
Jonger, and are usually renewable by mutual consent on mutually agrecable terms. The aggregate lcase rentals payabie are charged as rent in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Lease rental payable :
2021-22 2020-2021
Not later than 1year 32203 43220
Later than | year and not later than 5 years T79.18 616.66
Later than 5 years = -
Lease rent paid during the year 45323 47831
42) [S.nv | Description Carrying Amount |Amount Utilised  Unused Amounts (Additional Provision | Carrying Amount at
at the Beginning | (Incurred and [reversed during the end a3 on
10472021 charged against | the period 310372022
the
1 _|Prov for Doubtful debt & Unbilled Revenue 12072 (219,&1 0.84)] 4330 43130
2 |Prov for Bank Balance 146 - (146)| . =
3 |Prov for Doubtful Securities 554 (5.54) 3 165 163
4_|Prov for Loans & Advances 2194 (0 96) - 917 3015
Total 249.66 (22639 (2.30) 5412 7509
43) u)  Dunng the financial year, Company has disposed off its investment in its wholly owned subsidiary, Dicnsten Tech Limited (formesly known as JKT Consultng Limited). C y
between the proceeds from the disposal of investment in the subsidiary and the carrying amount of its assets less liabilities a5 of the date of disposal is recognised in the mhd-lpdmlum::tpmﬁ
and loss a3 gain of Rs. 196,26 Lakhs in accordance with A ing Standard AS-21, Consolidated Financial Consolidated Financial mcludes Net assets of Rs Nil (Previous year

Rs. (79.32)), Total Revenue of R9.76.53 (Previous Year Rs. 525.06) and Net Profit/(Loss) of Rs (1 46 (Previous year Ra. (117.01) related to the Diensten Tech Limited.

b)  During the finuncial year, subsidiary of the company i.c. JK Technosoft Gulf LLC has been liquidated consequent to the Oman appeil court order of liquidation w.e {215t March 2022 resulting into loss
of Rs. 1.10 Lakhs i e, the difference between the net proceeds of Rs.44,50 Lakhs received against Net Assets of Rs 43 60 Lakhs, which has been shown ly in dance with A
Standard AS-21, C lidated Financial [ Financial includes Net assets of Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. 65.99, Tota] Revenue of Rs Nil (Previous Year Rs Nif) snd
Net Profiv/(Loss) of Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. (2.24) Yrelated to JK Tehnosoft Gulf LLC

44) Figuresp \@ to subsidiary comp have been reclassified wherever necessary e bring them i line with the Group financial statements

45) Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary.

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE ATTACHED HEREWITH For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
For 5 8 Kothari Mchia & Company J K Technosoft Limited
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 000756N .
\ N
np T &g A 1 ‘y’
wveen Aggarwal Satish Chandrs Gupta Parthe Pratim Kar

Partner Director Director
M.No. 094380 DIN: 01595040 DIN: 00508567

Place : New Dehl
Date : 22-Jun-2012

N-ui{l’- Saiyad Amir
Senior V.P. Finance  Company Secretary

1K Technosoft Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Members of ] K TECHNOSOFT LIMITED,

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of ] K TECHNOSOFT
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at 31st March 2022, and the
statement of Profit and Loss and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information. (hereinafter referred to as “standalone financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act 2013 (“The Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2022, and the profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (“SAs") specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI")
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report,
Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The other
information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially miggiate

- Independent Auditors report FY 21-22 — J K Technosoft Lim
Plot No. 68, Okhla industrial Area, Phase-lll, New Delhi-110020
Tel: +91-11-4670 8888 E-mail: info@sskmin.com
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When we read the other information identified above, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the standalone
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internat-ce

Independent Auditors report FY 21-22 — J K Technosoft Limited Page 2 of 12
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* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management'’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user
of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

Independent Auditors report FY 21-22 — J K Technosoft Limited  aieaail / Page 3 of 12
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The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to the financial statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its standalone financial statements. Refer Note 18 to the standalone financial
statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts

for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

1ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually
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received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year and until
the date of this report in compliance with Section 123 of the Act .

For § § Kothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 000756N

\J

Naveen Aggarwal
Partner
Membership No. 094380
UDIN 22094380A0OHOFO08192
Place: New Delhi

Date: 224 June 2022

Independent Auditors report FY 21-22 — J K Technosoft Limited
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Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure as referred in paragraph (1) ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements of our independent Auditors’ Report to the members of ] K TECHNOSOFT
LIMITED on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022, we report
that:

i. In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a) A The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment

B The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) According to the information and explanation provided to us, Property, Plant and
Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size
of the company and nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on
such physical verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our
examination of records, we report that, the title deeds of all immovable properties
disclosed in the financial statements included under Property, Plant and Equipment
(other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are
duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name of the Company as at the
balance sheet date.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination
of records, the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and
intangible assets during the year

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination
of records, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against
the Company as at March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

ii. a. The Company does not hold any inventory. Accordingly, provision of clause (3)(ii)(a) of
the Order is not applicable.

b. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination
of records, the company has been sanctioned Cash Credit limits against current assets
in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from two banks . However, these are not
availed/utilized and as per information, consequent to non utilization of such
limits quarterly returns / statements for such sanctioned overdraft limits are not filed
with respective banks.

iii. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, the Company has made investments, provided unsecured loans to a company but

not provided any guarantee in, companies and to other parties, during the year, in respect of
which:

loans to a company.

Independent Auditors report FY 21-22 — ] K Technosoft Limited
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(A) Although the company has not provided loans or provided advances in the nature of
loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to its subsidiaries, however unsecured
loans provided to the subsidiary in earlier years is still outstanding as on 315t March 2022
amounting to Rs 1.02 lacs.

(B) The company has not provided Guarantee to companies and other parties. The
company has provided unsecured loans or provided advances in the nature of loans to
the company aggregating to Rs. 80.60 lacs during the year with an outstanding balance
as on 31st March 2022 of Rs.29.85 lacs. The company has not provided security to any
other entity.

(b) In our opinion, the investments made and the unsecured loan given are, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the Company’s interest. Further, Company has not provided any security to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.

(c) in respect of unsecured loans the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of
interest has been stipulated, however the loan outstanding i.e. Rs 1.02 lacs from the
subsidiary of the company has been categorised as doubtful in the earlier years. Besides
this loan recoverable from the other company although recovered during the year with
delay but interest amounting to Rs. 29.55 lacs remained outstanding as on 315t March 2022.

(d) the aggregate amount of more than 90 days is Rs. 27.46 lacs in respect of aforesaid
unsecured loan to other company and Rs. 1.02 lacs from subsidiary. According to the
information and explanation given to us, reasonable steps have been taken by the
company for recovery of the principal and interest as applicable.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, unsecured loans granted,
which has fallen due during the year, has not been renewed or extended or fresh loans
granted to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same parties., Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3 (iii)(e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company
has not granted any loans and advance in the nature loan without specifying any terms
or period of repayment. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii)(f) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

The company has complied with the provision of section 185 & 186 of the companies Act 2013
in respect of investments, Guarantee and loans and advances in the nature of loans.

According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has
neither accepted any deposits from the public nor any deposits are outstanding during the
year. There are no deemed deposits under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules
thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company. '

—
ACCOY
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vi. Inouropinion and according tothe information and explanations givento us, the
requirement of maintenance of cost records pursuant to Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Rules, 2014 prescribed by the Central Government in terms of sub-section (1) of
sectionl48 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the company.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination

of the records of the company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of
Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the
appropriate authorities with slight delays. There were no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of
Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March
31, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been

deposited as on March 31, 2022 on account of disputes are given below:

Nature of | Nature of dues | Amount in | Period to | Forum where

Statute Lacs which it | dispute is
relates pending

Income Tax | Income tax 187.45 AY 2009-2010 | ITAT

Act, 1961

viii. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

ix. (a)

(®)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of Interest thereon to any lender and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of
the Order is not applicable.

Based on the information and explanations obtained by us, the Company has not been
declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, the Company has only obtained vehicle loans which have been applied for the
purpose for which they were taken.

According to the information and explanation the company has not raised any funds on
short- term basis hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or
to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries and associate company is not having joint venture.
Accordingly, the reporting under this clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of

j Page 8 of 12
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subsidiaries. Company is not having any joint ventures or associate companies during the
year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

x. (@) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not raised
moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year. hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, during the year, the company has not made preferential allotment of shares, which
Is in accordance with the requirements of Section 42 and Section 62 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 13 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014.
Company has not issued any convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally
convertible) during the year. Hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable

xi. (@) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, no fraud by the company or on the company has been noticed or reported during
the period covered by our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been
filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
record, no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year (and upto
the date of this report)..

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order
is not applicable.

xiii. All the transactions with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the
note no. 30 of standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standard.

xiv. (a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of

records, in our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate
with the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the

Company during the year and till date of our report, in determining the nature, timing
and extent of our audit procedures.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable.

Independent Auditors report FY 21-22 — ) K Technosoft Limited Page 9 of 12
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xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of

xix.

India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The company has not conducted any Non- Banking Financial or Housing Finance

activities. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xvi)(b) of the order is not applicable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination

of the records, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India, accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(d) According to information and explanations provided to us and based on our examination

of records, the Company does not have more than one CIC in the group hence the
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and
the immediately preceding financial year.

There is no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period

of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due

There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For § § Kothari Mehta & Company

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. : 000756N

Naveen Aggarwal
Partner
Membership No. 094380

UDIN 22094380A0OHOF0O8192
Place: New Delhi
Date: 22™ June 2022
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Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements
of ] K TECHNOSOFT LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 2(f) of ‘Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements’

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
J K TECHNOSOFT LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our

audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note"”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards
on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference
to these reporting. %
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial statement

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial statement

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial with reference to financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial reporting and such internal financial controls with reference
to financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For § § Kothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. : 000756N

e

Naveen Aggarwal
Partner
Membership No.:094380
UDIN 22094380A0HOF08192
Place: New Delhi

Date: 227 June 2022
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EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholder's Funds

(a) Share Capital

(b) Rese-ves and Surplus

Non- Current Liabilities
{a) Longterm borrowings
{b) Long term Provisions

Current Liabilities
(a) Short term borrowings
(b) Trade Payables

(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises

and small enterprises, and

(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small enterprises
(c) Other current liabilities
(d) Short term provisions

TOTAL

ASSETS

Non Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant, Equipment and Intangible Assets
(i) Property, Plant and Equipment
(i) Intangible assets
(iii) Capital Work In Progress

(b) Non current investments

(c) Deferred tax assets (net)

(d) Other Non Current assets

Current Assets

(a) Currentinvestments

(b) Trade receivables

(c) Cash and Cash equivalents

(d) Short term loans and advances
(e) Other Current assets

TOTAL
Significant Accounting Policies

And Notes to accounts form an integral
part of Financial Staterniants

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE ATTACHED HEREWITH

For S 5 Kothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN.Q00756N

(e

(Naveen Aggarwal)
Partner

M.No. 094380
Place : New Delhi

R o) 2o

J K Technosoft Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31,2022

(All amounts are in Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Notes As at
March 31,2022 March 31,2021

2 870.36 559.49
3 7,683.98 5,034.48
4 38.69 63.43
5 1,252.25 1,256.43
6 24.74 25.75

7
113.14 74.55
229.20 164.26
8 785.07 2,477.92
9 178.40 366.12
11,175.83 10,022.43

10
807.91 735.61
39.77 34.24

326.10 -
11 29.57 163.96
12 389.92 831.70
13 692.03 935.34
1.1 34.33 33.49
14 1,55€.85 1,933.94
15 4,439 74 1,555.19
16 694.71 1,261.86
17 2,164.90 2,537.10
11,175.83 10,022.43"
1
2to 42

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

J K Technosoft Limited

gtgpts ! %}*

(Satish Chandra Gupta)

Director
IN:01595040

&
(M. Nata(aian)

Senior V.P. Finance

Annual Report 2021-22

(Partho Pratim Kar)
Director
DIN:00508567

JK Technosoft Limited

o i i
(Saiyad Amir)
Company Secretary



JK Technosoft Limited

J K Technosoft Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Notes 2021-2022 2020-2021

1 Revenue from Operations 19 20,579.61 18,115.00
1] Other Income 20 341.59 247.68
Il TOTAL INCOME (I + 1) 20,921.20 18,362.68
IV Expenses:

(a) Cost of Services 21 47.79 45.60

(b) Employee Benefit Expenses 22 14,836.48 13,003.24

(c) Finance Costs 23 15.00 129.19

(d) Depreciation And amortisation Expenses 24 251.11 264.37

(e) Other Expenses 25 3,117.16 2,662.47

TOTAL EXPENSES 18,267.54 16,104.87

Profit before Exceptional and Extraordinary Items & Tax
Vv (11-1v) 2,653.66 2,257.81
VI  Exceptional Items 26 - 113.30
VIl Profit before Extraordinary Items & Tax (V-VI) 2,653.66 2,144.51
Vil Extraordinary Items 27 - 850.80
1X Profit before Tax (VII-VIII) 2,653.66 1,293.71
X Tax Expenses

{a) Current Tax 590.18 734.50

(b) Deferred Tax 455.94 (340.44)

(c) Income Tax Adjustment (353.08) 8.37
X|I  Profit after Tax for the Year (IX-X) 1,960.62 891.28
XIl  Earnings per Equity Share: 31

(a) Basic 25.30 15.93

(b) Diluted 25.30 15.93

Significant Accounting Policies : §

And Notes to accounts form an integral 2to42

part of Financial Statements

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE ATTACHED HEREWITH
For § S Kothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN.O0O0756N

NG

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
J K Technosoft Limited

L N
=" N }'&3‘)

(Naveen Aggarwal) (Satish Chandra Gupta) (Partho Pratim Kar)
Partner Director Director
M.No. 094380 IN:01595040 DIN:00508567

Place : New Delhi

Date :
J e
;e \ bﬁ) Ny — ~G Gl
(M. Na{;rajan) (Saiyad Amir)
Senior V.P. Finance Company Secretary

Annuzl Report 2021-22
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1 K Technosoft Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit Before Tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amortisation
(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Assets (net)
Bad Debts
{Profit)/Loss on sale/valuation of Investment (net)
Interest Expenses
Dividend received
interest Income
Provision for diminution in vaiue of investment
Provision for Doubtful Debts
Less on assets Written off
Operating Profit Before Working Capitai Changes

Change in Working Capital

Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in Operating Assets/ Liabilities:
Changes In other Current Assets
Changes In long term provisions
Changes In Short term provisions
Changes In Trade Receivable
Changes in other current Liabilities
Changes In Trade Payables
Changes In Short term Loan and advances

Cash Generated from operations

Less: Direct Tax Paid

Net Cash flow from Operating Activities

B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchase of fixed assets
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Investment in subsidiaries & IV
Purchase of Investments (net)
interest Income
Dividend received
Fixed Deposits/ Margin money

Net Cash fiow from Investing Activity

C. Cash flow from Financing Activities
Repayment of long term borrowings
Proceeds of long term borrowings
Proceeds of Issue of Share Capital
Proceeds [Repayment) of short term borrowing
interest Paid
Net Cash flow from Financing Activity

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalent during the year{A+B+C)
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the year

Cash & Cash Equivalent at the end of the year

Balance as per Balance Sheet
Less: Deposit pledged against Margin Money and fixed deposit with banks
Balance as per Cash Flow Statement

2021-22 2020-21
2,653.66 1,283.71
251.11 264.37
(0.98) 14.20
212 -
17.43 (18.98)
15.00 129.19
(2.85) (1.95)
(205.05) (179.72)
[107.99) 113.30
129 314.22
50.93 28.20
2,674.65 1,956.55
319.41 (1,582.26)
(4.18) 236.49
(187.71) (116.97)
374,98 1,754.14
(1,692.93) 1,098.96
10353 (181.92)
710.18 (74.17)
2,297.93 3,090.81
(395.58) (1,101.03)
1,902.35 1,989.78
(706.93) (245.00)
194 5418
24239 {99.00)
{18.26) 0.94
257.85 174.91
285 1.95
243.31 (177.27)
23.18 (289.28)
{24.73) (10.61)
999.75 .
(1.01) (840.73)
(14.93) (128.86)
959,08 (980.20)
2,884.58 720.30
1,555.19 835.32
4,439.77 1.555.19
4,439.77 1,555.19
(3,683.48) (163.44)
756.29 1,391.75

{i) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method" as set out in the accounting standard [AS 3) Statement of Cash Flow.

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE ATT.
For § § Kothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants

{Naveen Aggarwal)
Partner

M.No. 094380
Place : New Delhi

Date 2}_‘ 0‘6{%2,2’_

(Satish Chandra Gupta)

Senior V.P. Finante

Annual Report 2021-22

{Partho Pratim Kar)
Director
DIN:00508567

g;e.x_;_)cw,@———
(Salyad Amir}
Company Secretary



J K TECHNOSOFT LIMITED
For the financial year ending 31st March 2022

Note No: 10
Plant, Property and Equipment

Property, plant and equip

" e Office Furniture and Plant & 5 Capital work in
i

Gross carrying amount Leasehold Land Buildings Equipments Fixtures Equipuicat ehicles Computers Server Software Total o

Balance as at March 31, 2021 7 17.96 311.50 17.40 131.93 136.78" 226.11 52948 67.75 85.11 1,524.40 = -
Additions - 1874 - 166 4549 6.00 27335 574 29.85 38083 326.10
Disposals = . 374 : 786 772 S 5 . 19.32 -
Written off/impairemem - - 1337 13155 7623 - - 16.05 - 23720

Balance as at March 31, 2022 17.96 330.64 0.29 2.04 98.17 224.39 802.83 57.43 114.96 1,648.71 326.10
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at March 31, 2021 4.72 6797 16.18 101.85 84.81 87.73 297.55 4287 50.87 754.55 -
Depreciation for the Year 022 495 0.07 528 1636 1252 17072 668 2432 25111 -
Depreciation on Assets Sold - - 355 - 747 733 - - - 1836 -
Ad 7 (Del ) due to Imp dunng - - 12.53 106.94 5597 & - 1083 = 18627

Balance as at March 31, 2022 4.94 72.92 0.17 0.18 37.73 102.91 468.27 38.73 75.19 B01.04 -
Net Block

Balance as at March 31, 2022 13.02 257.72 0.12 1.85 60.44 121.48 334.56 18.71 39.77 847.67 326.10
Balance as at March 31, 2021 13.24 24393 121 30.08 51.97 138.38 231.93 24.87 34.24 769.85 0
For the financial year ending 31st Morch 2021
Property, plant and equipment

. = Office Furniture and Plant & 3 Capital work in

Gross carrying amount Leasehold Land Buildings - . Bkt Vehicles Computers Server Software Total i
Balance as at March 31, 2020 17.96 311.90 136.33 241.44 116.51 21585 654.81 136.65 382.31 2,213.76 Loo
Additions - - 7.62 - - 4679 119.85 1.32 2041 19600 -
Disposals - - 491 1247 3455 36.53 245.18 - 33364 -
Wnitten offflmpairement - - 5438 97.05 1245 - - 70.23 317.62 551.72 1.00
Balance as at March 31, 2021 17.96 311.90 84.67 131.93 69.51 226.11 529.48 67.75 85.11 1,524.40 -
Accumulsted depreciation

Balance as at March 31, 2020 4.50 63.02 84.41 18535 79.26 94.67 32847 100.92 33736 127796 -
Depreciation for the Year 0.22 495 14.40 10.36 575 2031 175.09 790 2739 264 .37 -
Depreciation on Assets Sold - - 4.30 8.49 211 2125 204.01 - - 26526 -
Ad / (Del due to | during - = 45.57 8538 11.74 - = 65.94 31389 51252
the Year®

Balance as at March 31,2021 4.72 6797 48.94 101.85 52.05 87.73 29755 42.87 50.87 754.55 -
Net Block

Balance as at March 31, 2021 13.24 243.93 35.72 30.08 17.46 138.38 231.93 24.87 34.24 769.85 -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 13.45 248.88 51.93 56.09 37.25 121.18 326.34 35.73 44.95 935.80 0

CWIP Aging Schedule
CWIP: {Amount in CWIP for a period of 31/03/2022
Less than 1 year 1-2 Year 2-3Year | More than 3 Year Total
Project in Progress 326.10 - - = 326.10
Project temporary suspended, - -
Amount in CWIP for a period of 31/03/2021
Less than 1 year 1-2 Year 2-3 Year Mare than 3 Year |Total

Project in Progress

Project temporary suspended
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1 K Technosoft Limited
Notes Forming part of Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

J K Technosoft Limited (CIN - U64202D11988PLC030870) is a public limited company having its registered office at A-2, Local Shopping Complex, Masjid Moth, Greater Kailash - II, New Delhi - 110048 and its corporate
office at F-3, Sector 3, Noida 201301. The company has its subsidiaries in UK {JK TECH UK LIMITED - 100%), US (JK TECH US INC.- 100%), Bangladesh, (JKT Bangladesh Private Limited- 100%),Bahrain (JKT GCC WLL -
98%), JKT Europa BV (JKT Netherland-100%) and in India [E Safe Solutions Pvt Ltd-80%). The company is into IT Services (Application Deval t, | ion & Support, IT Consulting, Mability, Staff Augmentation,
Portal Services, Hyper automation), Enterprise Solutions (SAP, QAD, Microsoft, Progress, Mendix, ERP & CRM), Education and Training (IT/ Non IT Industry Induction and Mobile Solutions),

1)  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A Basis of Preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared In accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards specified Lnder Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts), Rule, 2014 and the relevant provision of the Companies Act, 2013/Companies Act, 1956, as applicable. The financial statements have
been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention.

B Use of Estimates
The preparation of fi lal st. s requires the r I'{ to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, including the disclosure of contingent liabilities as
of the date of the financial statements and the reported income and expenses during the reporting period like provision for employee benefits, provision for doubtful debts, useful lives of fixed assets, calculation of
waork in progress and provision for taxation etc. The Management believe that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due to these
estimates between the actual resultd and the estimates are recognised In the periods In which the results are known/ materialize.

C Revenue Recognition
The company derives its revenues primarily from software services. Revenue from software development on time and material basis is recognised as the related services are rendered. Revenue from fixed price
contracts is recognised using the milestone completion certificate as per contract or work order. Maintenance revenue is recognised over period of maintenance contract,
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the terms, amount outstanding and the applicable rate.
Dividend on investment is recognised when the right to recelve dividend is established.

D Property, Plant & Equipment and Capital work-in-progress
Property, Plant & Equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Direct costs are capitalized until such assets are ready for use, Capital work-in-progress, if any, comprises the
cost of fixed assets that are not yet ready for their intended use at the reporting date.

E Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for acquisition of such assets and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment.

Advances paid towards the isi /devel of soft ding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under other non-financial assets and the cost of assets not put to use before
such date are disclosed under ‘Intangible assets under development’.

F Depreciation and Amortization
Property, Plant & Equipment
Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is provided using straight line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule || of the Companies Act, 2013,
Leasehold land are amortized over the primary period of lease.
In respect of Property, Plant & Equipment whose useful life has been revised, the unamortized depreciable amount is charged over the revised remaining useful life.
Intangible Assets
The intangible assets are amortized over a period of three years based on its estimated useful life and the amortized period are reviewed by technical experts at the end of each financial year.

G Impairment of Assets
The carrying amount of assets, other than inventories is reviewed at each balance sheet date, to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
assets is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised, whenever the carrying amount of assets or its cash generating units exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset's net selling price and value
in use which is determined based on the estimated future cash flow generated from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful Ife, discounted to their present value,

An Impairment loss Is reversed, if there has been a change In the estimates made to determine and recognize the recoverable amount in the earlier year.

H Investment

Long term investments are carried at cost after providing for any diminution in value, if such diminution is of ather than temporary In nature.
Current investments are carried at ldwer of cost and fair value determined on the basis of each category of investments.

] Foreign Currency Transactions
Income and expenses in foreign currencies are converted at exchange rates prevailing on the date of transactions Foreign currency assets and liabilities other than net investrments in nen-integral foreign operatians
are translated at exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date and the exchange gain or loss are recognised in statement of profit and loss account, Net Investment in non-integral foreign operation are
reported at the exchange rate at the date of transactions.

1 Forward and Derivative Contracts
The company has entered foreign exchange forward and derivative contracts to hedge its exposures to movements in foreign exchange rates. The uses of these forelgn exchange forward and derivative contracts
reduces the risk or cost to the company and the Company does not use the foreign exchange forward contracts or aptions for trading or speculative purposes.

The premium/ discount arising at the inception of the contract is recognised over the tenor of the contract period. The exchange difference arising on actual payment/ realization of forward contract are adjusted in
profit and loss account. The difference between the year end rate and the rate on the date of forward contract/ option, lying at the year end, are recognised at Mark to Market valuation basis and are adjusted in
profit and loss account.

K Income Tax
Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance wk}\ the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing
evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT Is recognised as an assets in the Balance Sheet where it is probable that future economic benefits associated with it will flow to the
Company.

Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences between the accounting income and the taxable income for the year and quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted as on the balance
sheet date, Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is a reasonable certainty that assets can be realized in future. However, where
there is unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward of losses and item related to capital losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only If there is a virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence of realization of

such assets. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset wherever the company has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority.

L Employee Benefits

Gratuity
The Company provides for gratuity, a defined banafit reti plan ring eligible ! The G
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} K Technosoft Limited
Notes Forming part of Financial Statements
Liabiiities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation, performed by an independent actuary, at each Balance Sheet date using the projected unit credit method. The Company fully
contributes all ascertained liabilities to the JK Informatics Limited Employee Group Gratuity Trust. Trustees administer contributions made to the Trust and contributions are invested in a scheme with Life insurance
Corporation of India, as permitted by law of India. The Company recognised the net obligation of the gratuity pian in the Balance Sheet as an asset or liability, respectively in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS)
15, "Emplayee Benefits". Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumption are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise

Provident fund

Eligible employees receive benefits from a provident fund, which is  defined benefit plan. Bath the employee and the Company make monthly contributions to the provident fund plan equal to a specified percentage
of the employee's salary. The Company contributes a portion to the JK Companies Officers Provident Trust. The trust invests in specific designated instruments as permitted by Indian law. The remaining portion Is
contributed to the government administered pension fund (RPFC, Delhi). The rate at which the annual interest is payable to the beneficiaries by the trust is being administered by the government. The Company has
an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, between the return from investments of the trust and the notified interest rate.

Compensated absence

The employees of the Company are entitied to compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absence is determined by
actuarial valuation using projected unit credit method on the additional amount expected to be paid/ availed as a results of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the Balance Sheet date Expenses on non
accumulating compensated absences is recognised in the period in which the absence occurs.

Employee Stock option plan
Accounting value of stock option is determined on the basis of "Intrinsic Value" and the Exercise Price per Option shall be determined by the Board which shall not be lesser than the face value and not higher than the
Fair Market Value (FMV) of the Share as on date of Grant of such Option. The specific Exercise Price shall be intimated to the Option Grantee in the Grant Letter at the time of Grant.

M Leases
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of awnership of the leased assets are recognised as operating leases. Operating Lease payments are recognised as an expenses In the
statement of profit and loss on Straight Line Method.
Assets leased by the Company in its capacity as lessee where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership vest in the Company are classified as finance lease. Such leases are capitalized at the inception of the
lease and charged off in accordance with the applicable terms/ years of lease.

N Provisians. Cantingent Liahilities and Continoant
A provision is recognised when the company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made, Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on best estimates required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date,
These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to accounts. A contingent asset is neither
recognised nor disclosed in financial statements.

(¢] Earning Per Share
Basic earning per share is computed by dividing the Net Profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted earnings per shares is computed by dividing the Net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number
of equity share that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential shares, if any.

P Cash and Cash Equivalent
Cash comprises cash in hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition) and which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Q Cash Flow Statement
Cash Flows are reported using indirect method, whereby the Net Profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and item of income or exp with | ing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities are segregated.

R Borrowing Cost
Borrowing cost attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets is capitalized as a part of those assets. Other Borrowing Costs are recognized as an expense in the period to which they relate.

2) SHARE CAPITAL

As at As at
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Authorised
2,50,00,000 (March 31,2021- 1,50,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- 2,500.00 1,500.00
a) Reconciliation of number of Shares
Equity Shares (No.)
At the Beginning of the year 15,000,000 15,000,000
Increase during the year 10,000,000 -
Qutstanding at the end of year 25,000,000 15,000,000
Reconciliation of Share Capital (Am?uml
Equity Shares (Amount)
At the Beginning of the year 1,500.00 1,500.00
Increase during the year 1,000.00 .
Outstanding at the end of year 2,500.00 1,500.00
b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
55,94,878 (March 31, 2021: 55,94,878) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- 559.49 559.49
Reconciliation of number of Shares
Equity Shares (No.}
At the Beginning of the year 5,594,878 5,594,878
Issued during the year - -
Qutstanding at the end of year 5,594,878 5,594,878
Reconciliation of Share Capital (Amount)
Equity Shares (Amount)
At the Beginning of the year 559.49 559.49
Issued during the year . -
Outstanding at the end of year 559.49 559.49

Issued, Subscribed and Partly Paid-Up

12434724 Shares @ 10/- each and called up @ 2.5 each 310.87
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Reconciliation of Partly Paid up number of shares
Equity Shares (No.)
At the Beginning of the year
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Issued during the year
Outstanding at the end of year

Reconciiiation of Partly Paid up Share Capital (Amount)
Equity Shares (Amount)

At the Beginning of the year

Issued during the year

Outstanding at the end of year

1 K Technosoft Limited

Notes Forming part of Financial Statements

No class of shares have been alloted other than cash by the Company during the five years imimediately preceding the current year end.
No class of shares have been bought back by the Company during the five years immediately preceding the current year end

There are no securities that are convertible into Equity Shares

12,434,724
12,434,724

310.87 -
310.87 -

870.36 559.49

each equity share of face value of Rs,

plan in another company (Transferor Company) which has merged or amalgamated

Q v
(i Increas in 7 uthorised Capital
Suring the financial year 2021-22, the authorised equity share capital of the company was Increased vide approval of share holders of the Company dated April 8, 2021 and November 25, 2021 from Rs. 1,500 Lakh
divided into 15000020 equity shares‘@ 10/- each to Rs. 2000 Laks divided into 20000000 equity shares of Rs, 10/- each and Rs. 2,500 Lakh divided into 25000000 equity shares @ Rs. 10/- each respectively
(i) Rigrt Issue
The Doard of Directors of the company an March 12,2021 approved fund raising by way of right issue and on approved issued of 12434724 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/-
10/- [Right Equity Share] at a price of Rs. 80,42 per right equity share including premium of Rs. 70.42 per right equity share aggregating to Rs. 10,000 Lakh in the ratio of 2.22 right equity shares for every One eisting
fully paid up shares held by the eligible equity share holders as on record date March 12,2021. On July 22, 2021 the company approved allotment of 12434714 right equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each to
eligible applicants, right equity shares were allotted as a partly paid up for an amount of Rs. 8.04 per right equity share received on application (of which Rs. 2.50 was towards face value and Rs. 5.54 wa towards
premium)
d) Terms/ right attached to the Equity Shares
The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Holder of equity shares is entitled to one vate per share. The company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees.
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity share will be entitied to receive remaining assets of the Cornpany, after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any, The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
e) ESOP:
During the year the Company has launched JK TECHNOSOFT — Employee Stock Option Plan 2021. Same Plan was approved by Board and Shareholders on September 2, 2021.
The primary objective of the plan is to reward key employees for their association, dedication, and contribution to the goals of the Company.
Total number of aptions approved under the plan 26,00,000 (Twenty-six lacs aptions)
Vesting requirements:
Options granted under ESOP 2021 shall vest not earlier than the minimum period of 1 (one) year and not later than the maximum period of 5 (five) years from the date of Grant. The Board at its discretion may grant
Option specifying Vesting Period ranging from minimum and maximum period as afore stated.
Provided that in case where Options are granted by the Company under the Plan in lieu of Option held by a person under a similar
with the Company, the period during which the Option granted by the Transferor Company were held by him shall be adjusted against the minimum Vesting Period required under this Sub-clause.
Exercise Price:
The Exercice Price per Option shall be determined by the Board which shall not be lesser than the face value and not higher than the Fair Market Value (FMV) of the Share as on date of Grant of such Option. The
sperific Exercise Price shall be intimated to the Option Grantee in the Grant Letter at the time of Grant.
viethod to use Account for ESOP: inirinsic
Experzz2s that would have been debited in statement of profit and loss if the Company has adopted fair value accounting: Rs.820.32 Lakh
G, “ior movemant during the year:
Total option issued 1047500
Option lapsed during the year 5500
\Opticn vested during the year NIL
Option Exercised during the year NIL
Option outstanding at the end of year 1042000
Fair Value of Shares v
The Company has used a combination of Income and Market Approach for determination of Fair Value of Shares, For income Approach, the Company has considered a Risk Free Rate of 6.34%, and WACC of 15.77%
Fair Value of Dption
The Company has used Black Scholes Model for arriving at the fair value of Stock Option
f) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
S. No. Equity Share of Rs.10 Each No. of Shares % held Mo, of Shares % held
1 |Dwarikadhish Finance & Investment Co. Pvt Ltd 1,596,000 28.53% 1,596,000 28.53%
2 _|Manphul Trading & Finance Co. Pvt, Ltd. 1,265,950 22.63% 1,265,950 22.63%
3__ K Infrastructure & Developers Pvt. Ltd. 730,000 13.05% 730,000 13.05%
4 | Neelkhanth Mercantile Pvt. Ltd. 658,500 11.77% 658,500 11.77%
5 |Akshyapatra Finance & Investment Pvt. Ltd 437,500 8.89% 497,500 8.89%
6 |JK Consultancy and Services PvL. Ltd. 300,000 5.36% 300,000 5.36%
g Details of Shares held by the promotors at the end of the finandial year 2021-22
_ % age of total shares
. No. Promoter' Name No. of Shares held % age change during the Year
1 | Dwarikadhish Finance & Investment Co. Pvt Ltd 1,596,000 28.53% No Change
2__|Manphul Trading & Finance Co.Pvt. Ltd. 1265950 22.63% No Change
3 _|JKlInfrastructure & Developers Put. Ltd. 730,000 13.05% No Change
4 Ik h Mercantile Pvt. Ltd. 658500 11.77% No Change
5 |Akshyapatra Finance & Investment Pvt. Ltd 497500 8.89% No Change
6 |JK Consuitancy and Services Pyt. Ltd. 300000 5.36% No Change
7 |Uduol-av Finance & Investment Co. Pvt. Ltd. 5000 0.09% No Change
8 |Abhishek Sirghania 215804 3.86% No Chang=
9 __[Manorama Singhania 10000 0.18% No Change
10_|varsha Singhania 10000 0.18%
11 |PGA Securities Pvt. Ltd. 100000 1.79%
Anciusl Report 2071-11
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3)

4)

5)

6)

7

1 K Technosoft Limited
Notes Forming part of Financial Statements

Sr. No.|Promoter's Name No. of shares % age of total shares % Change during the
1 |Dwarikadhish Finance & Investment Co. Pvt Ltd 15,96,000 28.53% No Change
2 |Manphul Trading & Finance Co.Pvt. Ltd. 12653950 22.63% 0.0072
3 |JK Infrastructure & Developers Pvt. Ltd. 7,30,000 13.05% No Change
4 |Neelkhanth Mercantile Pvt. Ltd. 658500 11.77% No Change
5 |Akshyapatra Finance & Investment Pvt. Ltd 497500 8.89% No Change
6 |IK Consultancy and Services Pvt. Ltd. 300000 5.36% No Change
7 _|Udbhav Finance & Investment Co. Pvt. Ltd. 5000 0.09% No Change
8 |Abhishek Singhania 215804 3.86% 0.0026
9 [Manorama Singhania 10000 0.18% No Change
10 _|Varsha Singhania 10000 0.18% No Change
11 |PGA Securities Pvt. Ltd. 100000 1.79% Mo Change

i) Details of Shares held by the promotors for partly paid up equity shares at the end of the financial year 2021-22

% age of total shares % age change during
S. No.|Promoter’ Name No. of Shares held the Year
1 |Abhishek Singhania 12347272 99.30% 99.30%
2 |varsha Singhania 22225] 0.18% 0.18%

il Details of Shares held by the promotors for partly paid up equity shares at the end of the financial year 2020-21

% age of total shares % age change during
S, No.|Promoter’ Name No. of Shares held the Year
1 |Abhishek Singhania 2 x E
2 |varsha Singhania S L
RESERVES AND SURPLUS
As at Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
a) Balance in Statement of Profit and Loss
As per Last Balance Sheet 5,034.48 4,143.20
Add: Profit for the year 1,960.62 891.28
6,995.10 5,034.48
b) Securities Premium Account
Balance as at Beginning of the year E
Add:-Securities Premium (Partly paid up Equity
Shares) 688.88 =
688.88 2
Total Reserve & Surplus (a+b) 7,683.98 5,034.48
LONG TERM BORROWINGS
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Non Current Non Current
Secured Loan
Vehicle Loan from Banks 6343 89.18
Less: Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowing (24.74) (25.75)
38.69 63.43
Vehicle Loan from Banks/ Institutions are secured against Hypothacation of Specific Vehicle.
Interest Rate, Tenure and EMI of above loans are as per details below:
Date of
Bank Name Nature Rate Tenure EMI commencement
of Repayment Date of Closure
Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd Vehicle Loan 9 77% 60 Manths 45,344 05-11-16 05-10-21
HDFC Bank Limited Vehicle Loan 9.00% 60 Months 1,66,067 07-02-19 07-01-24
ICICI Bank Limited Vehicle Loan 8.00% 60 Months 77,031 01-01-21 01-12-25
There is no default in repayment of principal loan or interest thereon,
Repayment Schedule
Year Amount
2022-23 24.73
2023-24 23.64
2024-25 8.34
2025-26 6.71
LONG TERM PROVISIONS
Asat As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Provision for Lease Equalisation 24,91 69.34
P for employee benefl
Gratuity (Refer Note 28.1) 620.84 615.22
Leave Encashment (Refer Note 28.3) 606.50 571.86
1,252.25 1,256.43
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Vehicle Loan from Banks 24.74 25.75
TRADE PAYABLES
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
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Notes Forming part of Financial Statements
Due to Micro and Small enterprises (Refer Details given in tabla Below | 113.14 74.55
Others Trade Payable other than Mi¢ro and Small Enterprises. 229.20 164.26
342.34 238.81
Trade Payable Aging as at March 31, 2022
Outstanding for followi riod from the due date of ents
Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
1) MSME 101.99 = 11.15 - 113.14
(ii) Others 22852 0.68 225.20
iii) Disputed MSME - - - =
(iv) Disputed Others ® 5
330.51 - 11.83 - 342.34
Trade Payable Aging as at March 31, 2021
Outstanding for following period fram the due date of payments
Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
1) MSME 63.40 - 1115 = 74.55
(i) Others 163.44 0.82 - 164.26
(iif) Disputed MSME - = : =
(iv) Disputed Others = = z =
226.84 0.82 11.15 - 238.81
Due to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
Asat Asat
S. No. Delts peicn March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
1 Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year 113.14 74.55
2 |interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accaunting year. -
The amount of interest paid by the company in terms of section 16, of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the
3 {amounts of the payment made to the suppliers beyond the appointed day during the year.
4 |The amount of interest due and payable for the period of defay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year)
but without adding the interest specified under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 - -
5 |The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year 0.11
6 |The amount of further interest due and payable even In the succeeding period, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the
small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of MSMED Act, 2006. - -
8) OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Advance from Customers - 3.02
Interest Accrued but not due on borrowings 0.40 0.33
Statutory Dues Payable 367.56 305.18
Employee's Salary Payabie & Others Payable 136.69 8998.52
Other Payalyles 280.42 1,170.81
785.07 2,477.92
9) SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (Refer Note 28.1)* 40.79 59.08
Leave Encashment (Refer Note 28.3) 137.62 126.44
Others
Provision for income tax 590.18 734.50
Less: Advance Tax & TDS (590.18) (553.90) 180.60
i 178.40 366,12
*Pravision lh;r Gratuity is shown as Net of Plan Assets and Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation as fully detailed in Note No. 28
11) NON CURRENT INVESTMENT
] Asat As at
| R Cyea, March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Trade Inv'fmpcm! .
A}
o fguity Instrumg
In Equity Shares of Subsidiary Companies
Unquoted, fully paid up
JK Tech US Inc. (Formerly known as Proserve Consulting Inc.) 10.80 10.80
310,000 Shares of $0.001 each Issued at Par;
, ‘Balance as Additional paid-in Capital '
100% Subsidiary
o
JK Tech UK Limited (Formerly known as JK Technosoft (UK) Limited) 13.52 13.52
200000 Shares of £0.10 each issued at Par
100% Subsidiary
Diensten Tech Limited (Formerly known as KT Consulting Limited 83.56

798994 Shares of Rs, 10 Each
61,000 Shares of Rs. 10 Each purchased at Rs.6 per share
(Ceased to be subsidiary for w.e.f. March 29, 2022)
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J K Technosoft Limited
Notes Forming part of Financial Statements

JKT Gult LLTC

97,500 Shares of OMR 1.00 each issued at Par
65% Subsidiary

(Ceased to be subsidiary for w.e.f. March 21, 2021)

JKT Bangladesh Pvt Ltd
64660 Shares of BDT 10 each issued at Par
100% Subsidiary

JKT GCCWLL
98 shares of BHD 50 each issued at Par
98% Subsidiary

E Safe Solutions Pvt Ltd (Formerly Known as JKT Learning Solutions Pvt Ltd)
15,30,000 Shares(PY 5,40,000) of Rs. 10 Each
90 % Subsidiary

Total Trade Investments (A)

NON CURRENT INVESTMENT (CONT.)
Trade Investment
In Mutual Fund - Quoted fully paid up

JM Basic Fund- Growth Option(246)
17996,708 units of Rs. 13.7903/- Each

In Equity Shares - Quoted fully paid up

Reliance Industries Limited

400 Shares of Rs. 10/-

JAY KAY Enterprises Limited (Earlier JK Synthetics Limited)
12,538 Shares of Rs. 1/-

Total Non - Trade Investments (8)

Total Non - Current Investment (A+B)

Aggregate amount of Quoted Investment

Market Value of Quoted Investment

Aggregate amount of Non - Quoted Investment

Aggregate Provision for diminution in the value of Investment

11.1) CURRENT INVESTMENTS
(Valuation at Lower of Tost or Fair Value )

Invi

in Equi ares (Quo

JK Tyre and In-ustries

5550 (PY : 5650) shares of Rs. 2 each of
COAL INDIA LIMITED

15500 shares of Rs.10 eoch of
VODAFONE IDEA LIMITED

150000 shares of Rs.10 each of

Easy Trip Planners Limited

6600 shares of Rs.2 Each

Aggregate amount of Quoted Investment
Market Value of Quoted Investment

12) DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)

Deferred Tax Liabilities '
Depreciation and Amortization

Profit on Forward Cover M2M

Deferred Tax Assets

Employees Benefits

Impairment of Fixed Asset

Lease Equalization reserve

Provisions for Doubtful Debts & Advances
Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Annus Report 101113

Less

Less

Less

Less

158.83
Provision {107.95}
5.25 5.25
: Provision (5.25) (5.25)
9.05 9.05
: Provision (9.05) (9.05)
153.00 153.00
: Provision (153.00) (153,00)
24.32 158.71
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
2.48 248
2.64 264
013 0.13
5.25 5.25
29.57 163.96
5.25 5.25
= 27.29 20.46
191.62 434.01
(167.30) (275.29)
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
229 229
17.56 17.56
1365
14.48 =
34.33 3349
34,33 33.49
57.50 39.90
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(9.31) (2.30)
(6.47) {1.30)
354.05 399.70
12.82
6.27 20.19
32.57 415.41
389.92 831.70
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13) OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed Deposit with Bank:
Deposits (Free) with original maturity more than 12 months 409.84 585.72
Deposits Pledged against Margin Money/Security 69.45 67.48
Capital Advance - 50.00
479.33 703.21
(Unsecured and Considered Good unless stated otherwise)
Security Deposit
Considered Good 21270 232.14
Considered Doubtful 185 5.54
Less: Provision for Doubtful security Deposits (1.65) (5.54)
212.70 232.14
692.03 935.34
CURRENT ASSETS
14) TRADE RECEIVABLES
As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Unsecured and Considered Good, unless stated otherwise
Considered Good 1,556.85 1,933.94
Considered Doubtful 95.63 220.72
Less: Provision Doubtful Debts (95.63) (22072
1,556.85 1,933.94
Trade Receivable Aging
Outstanding for a period as on 31.03.2022 from due date of payment
Less than 6 More than 3
Particulars Not Due months 6 months - 1 year 1-2years years Grand Total
Undisputed Trade receivables ’
i 238.3 . A = b
Emebac gt 1,114.77 8.38 194.74 8.96 1,556.85
Undisputed Trade
- 3 50.74 .99 .6 83.93
Receivable considered doubtful 158 2 LE
Disputed Trade Receivables R R ~
considered doubtful it sy
Disputed Trade Receivables . . R N
considered good
Grand Total 1,114.77 251.65 245.49 38.95 1.62 1,652.48
Trade Receivable Aging
Outstanding for a period as on 31.03.2021 from due date of payment
[ Less than 6 More than 3
Particulars Not Due months 6 months - 1 year 1-2years years Grand Total
L 118547 72627 18.47 212 162 1,933.94
considered good
Undisputed Trade
Receivable considered doubtful B i b i e 220.72
Disputed Trade Receivables i i
\considered doubtful
Disputed Trade Receivables
@Mm L _
Grand Total 1,185.47 728.83 18.54 217.83 4.01 2,154.67
15) CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Al
As at As at
Cash and Cash Equivalents March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance with Banks 715.68 1,392.94
Less: Provision for Bank Balance = (1.46)
Cheque in Transit 40.57 -
Cash in hand - 0.26
756.26 1,391.75
Other Bank Balances
Fixed Depaosit with Bank:
Deposits (Free) with original maturity less than 12 months 3,577.53 70.53
Deposits Pledged against Margin Money/Security(Short term deposits) 105.96 92.92
4,439.74 1,555.19
16) SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Unsecured and Considered Good, unless stated otherwise
Loan to a Body Corporate 29.55 500,00
Diensten Tech Limited (Formerly known as JKT Consulting Limited) (Refer Note 30) - 344,12
E Safe Solutions Pvt Ltd (Formerly Known as JKT Learning Solutions Pyt Ltd) 1.02 1.01
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts (1.02) (1.01)
Advance to Vendors/ Suppliers/ Others 10.21 6.92
Less: Provision for Advances ~ (0.96)
Loan and Advances to Staff (incl. FFS recovery) 45.70 2557
Less: Provision for Advance to Staff. Report 2031.31 (29.14) (19.97)
Balance with Income Tax Authorities f 638.39 406.23
694.71 1,261.86
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23)
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Notes Forming part of Financial Statements

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Unsecured and Considered Good
Unbilled Revenue
Less: Provision for Doubtful Amount
Prepaid Expenses
Receivable against Forward Contract
Balance with Revenue Authorities
Interest receivable
Duties & Taxs “ecoverable
Other receivable
)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & COMMITMENTS:

18.1 CONTINGZENT LIABILITIES

As At As At

Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021

Contingent Liabilities:
In respect of Income Tax (AY-2009-10) where the
company is into appeal to Income Tax Appellate 187.45 187.39
Tribunal (ITAT)
Commitments:
Guarantee given by bank for Customer Projects 234,30 28573

18.2.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS:

As At As At

Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021

a. Capital Commitment ( Net of advances)
Estimated Amount of Contract in capital account

54.53 .00
remaining to be executed and not provided for i

Total 54.53 150.00

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Income from Services
1fe Services ond C g Services
Domestic
Export
Deerned Export (SEZ)
Commercial Coaching and Training Services
Domestic
Export
Deemed Export (SEZ)
Sale of Product: Computer Software

OTHER INCOME

Interest incoma

Notice Period Recovery

Exchange Gain(Net)

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets(net)

Dividend of Investment on Share

Miscellaneaus Income

Profit on Sale of Investment

Balance Written Back

Sale of Scrape

Reimbursement of Expenses:
Reimbursement of Expenses
Reimbursement of Expenses-SEZ

COST OF SERVICES

Cost of Software Purchased
Others

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
Salaries and Wages

Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 28.1, 28.2 and 28.3)
Staff Welfare Expenses

FINANCE COST

Interest Expenses on Vehicle Loan

Arvjalipor 07112 ﬁ

W

As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
1,566.14 2,381.35
g (93.50)
244.97 163.43
25.91 5.33
58.60 24.24
- 5279
0.09 1.09
269.19 237
2,164.90 2,537.10
2021-2022 2020-2021
4,943.50 5,536.91
13,688.19 11,461.15
1,390.36 753.22
370.45 275.97
0.80 =
147.46 55.19
38.85 32.57
20,579.61 18,115.00
2021-2022 2020-2021
205.05 179.72
18.94 6.84
89.69 4.01
0.98 -
285 1.95
577 1.63
3.56 22,69
- 12.41
13.31 14.65
144 379
341.59 247.69
2021-2022 2020-2021
3322 45.60
14.57 -
47.79 45.60
2021-2022 2020-2021
13,776.87 12,212.12
731.62 541.85
327.98 249,27
14,836.48 13,003.25
2021-2022 2020-2021
15.00 129.19
15.00 129.19
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24)

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES

Depreciation on Praperty, Plant & Equipment
Amortization of Intangible Assets

24.1) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

25)

26)

27)

28)

28.1

b

As per Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013, the following is the details of Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses incurred by the Company:

a) Amount required to be spent during the year
b) Amount of expenditure incurred
€) Shortfall at the end of the year
d) Total of previous years shortfal
e} Reason for shortfall
f) Nature of CSR activities
Details of related party transactions, e.g.,
contribution to a trust controlled by the company as
gl per relevant Accounting Standard
Where a provision is made w.r.t. liability incurred, the
movement in the provision during the year should be
h) shown separately

OTHER EXPENSES

Rent (Refer Note 36)

Professional Fee

Electric, Power, Fuel and Water

Travelling Expenses-Domestic

Travelling Expenses- Foreign

Conveyance & Tax| Hire Charges

Internet and Networking Expenses
Insurance Premium

Communication Expenses

Maintenance Expenses - Office
Maintenance Expenses - Computers
Business Pramation

Audit Fee (Refer Note 32)

Bad Debts

Impairment & Loss on Assets written off
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets

Repairs & Maintenance- Plant & Machinery
Rates and taxes, excluding, taxes on income.
Miscellaneous Expenses

Loss on sale/valuation of Investment

CSR Expenditure (Refer Note 24.1)
Recruitment Expenses '
Provision for Doubtful Debts

Provision for Loans & Advances

Bank Guarantee Invoked written off*

Cost to Complete Project

Bank Charges

Donation & Charity

1 K Technosoft Limited
Notes Forming part of Financial Statements
2021-2022 2020-2021
226.79 236.98
24.32 27.39
251.11 264.37
2021-2022 2020-2021
13.22 9.28
13.22 9.28
NA NA
Sports related activities Sports related activities
NA NA
2021-2022 2020-2021
351.02 463.24
1,603.27 84379
63.23 76.23
64.70 26.98
38.61 8.81
10.08 4.62
98.56 103.87
16.44 20.22
2478 16.67
14111 164.29
3l4.46 213.03
14.42 0.77
11.00 11.00
212 -
50.93 28.20
- 14.20
478 8.35
19.95 53.15
60.32 51.92
20.99 37
13.22 9.28
180.17 4091
129 314.22
8.47 37.14
- 93,05
= 43.70
3.00 7.85
0.25 325
311716 2,662.47

* During the financial year 2020-21 one of the contracts entered with the customer EIT services India P. Ltd, in which end customer is Government of Kerala of heakh and family welfare has encashed the Performance Bank
Guarantee. Based on the Technical assessment, company has decided to write off such recovery.

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
Provision for Diminutien in the value of Long Term Investments
EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS *

Payment to DGFT Refund
Interest on Payment to DGFT Refund

2021-2022

2020-2021
113.30

113.30

618.61
232.1%

850.80

* During the financial year 2020-21, post demand from DGFT office, company has refunded the amount along with applicable interest with respect ta SEIS script, incorrectly claimed & refunded to company by DGFT office in

earlier years . This being the extraordinary item, hence disclosed separately in the Financials.

EMPLOYEE DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
PROVISION FOR GRATUITY

I Assumptions:
Discount Rate

Rate of Increase in Compensation Levels
Rate of Return on Plan Assets

" Changes in Present Value of Obligations During the Period (Amount in Rs.)
Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning of the period
Interest Cost
Past Service Cost \

Current Service Cost

Benefit Paid

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations
Acquisition/Business Combination/Divestiture

Present Value of Obligation as at the end of the period

2021-2022

6.86%
10.00% first
year;7.50%
thereafter

7.02%

687.40
40.42

139.42
(124.21)
(60.26)

24,65

686.83

2122

2020-2021

6.57%
14.00% first
year;7.50%
thereafter

6.84%

699.96
36.41
130.20
(63.61)
(115.57)

687.40
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1 K Technosoft Limited
Notes Forming part of Financial Statements
2021-2022
n Changes in the Fair value of Plan Assets during the Periad

Fair Value of Pian Assets at the beginning of the period 13.10

Expecied Return on Plan Assets " 1.46

Contributions 160.64

Benefits Paid (144.21)

Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) on Plan Assets {5.80)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the period 25.20

w Fair Value of Plan Assets

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the period 13.10

Actual Return on Plan Assets (4,34)

Contributions 160.64

Benefits Paid (144.21)

Fair value of plan assets at the end of period 25.20

v Expenses recognized in the Profit and Loss Account

Current Service Cost 139.42

Past Service Cast

Interest Cost 40.42

Expected Return on Plan Assets. (1.46)

Net actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized in the period {55.07)

Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 123.32

Vi Bifurcation of Present value of Obligation at the end of the year as per Schedule lil 2021-2022

of the Companies Act, 2013

Current Liability(Short term) 40.79

Non-Current Liability(Long term) 620.84

Present Value of Obligation as at the end 661.63

In respect of funded defined benefit scheme of provident fund (Based on actuarial valuation) 2021-2022

The following table sets out the status of Provident Fund as per the actuarial valuation as per the

information available to us.

1 Assumptions:

Discount Rate 6.86%

Interest rate guarantee 8.10%

Average Histaric yield on the Investment 8.05%

] Summary of Membership Status

Number of employees 1380

Average age(years) 3176

Expected average future working life time(years) 7.13

mn Summary of Funds Status

Accumulated Account value of Employee’s Fund 5,464.91

Value of Plan Assets 5,655,54

Average remaining tenure of the investment(years)

w ployer's Contribution during the p year 519.58

Assets and Liability(Balance Sheet Position):

Particulars For the period Ending For the period Ending
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Accumulated Account Value of Employee's Fund 5,464.91 4,720.55

Interest Rate Guarantee Liability 97.78 117.10

Present Value of Obligation(Total) 5,562.69 4,837.65

Value of Plan Assets 5,655.54 4,848.55

Surplus/(Defict, 92.85 10.90

Net Liability to be ized in balance Sheet of the Company - =

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

2021-2022
Employer's contribution ta Employee State Insurance and Provident Fund 589.47
PROVISION FOR LEAVE ENCASHMENT 2021-2022
1 Assumptions:

Discount Rate 6.86%
10.00% first
year;7.50%

Rate of Increase in Compensation Levels thereafter

\ 2021-2022
] Changes in Present Value of Obligations During the Period (Amount in Rs.)

Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning of the period 698.30

Interest Cost 38.26

Current Service Cost 204.24

Acquisition/Business Combination/Divestiture 26.26

Benefit Paid (231.80)

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations 8.86

Present Value of Obligation as at the end of the period 744.12

1] Expenses recognized in the Profit and Loss Account
Current Service Cost

= _€ 204.24
Past Service Cost
interest Cost ﬂ,/ \J 3826
Expected Return on Plan Assets y

2020-2021

13.01
0.95
7231
(63.61)
(9.55)
13.10

13.01
(8.61)
72.31
(63.61)
13.10

130.20
36.41
(0.95)

(106.02)
59.65

2020-2021
59.08

615.22
674.30

2020-2021

6.75%
8.50%
B.14%

1308
32,59
7.38

4,720.55
4,848.55

468.75

2020-2021
475.00
2020-2021
6.54%

14.00% first year;
7.50% thereafter

2020-2021
610.96
3001
20266
(12062)

(24.71)
§98.30

202.66

30.01
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1 K Technosoft Limited
Notes Forming part of Financial Statements
Net actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized in the period 8.86 (24.71)
Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 251.36 207.95
w Bifurcation of Present value of Obligation at the end of the year as per Schedule Il
of the Companies Act, 2013 2021-2022 2020-2021
Current Liability(Short term) 137.62 126,44
Non-Current Liability(Long term) 606.50 571.86
Prasent Value of Obligation as at the end 744.12 698.30
SEGMENT REPORTING
The company has identified geographic segments as its primary segments.
Year Ended March 31, 2022 (Rs.)
Uk usa India Others Total
Particulars
Revenue & Other Income 3,064.47 9,627.45 7,233.00 956.27 20,921.20
Identified Operating Expenses 2,266.64 6,093.13 6,172.66 351.83 14,884.27
Allocable Expenses 2335 10.75 64.70 25.50 124.30
Unallocable expenses (Net of income) - - - 3,240.97
Segment Results 774.48 3,523.57 995.65 618.94 2,671.66
Less: Finance cost 18.00
Provision for Tax 693.04
Profit after Tax 1,960.62
As at March 31, 2022 (Rs.)
Particulars UKk usa India Others Total
Segment Assets 5113 14.49 1,215.28 37158 1,652.48
Unallocable Assets 9,523.35
Total Assets 11,175.83
As at March 31, 2022 (Rs.)
Particulars UK usa India Others Total
Segment Liabilities and equity - - - -
Unallocable Liak and shareholder's fund 11,175.83
Total Liabilities 11,175.83
Year Ended March 31, 2021 (Rs.)
UK USA India Others Total
Particulars
Revenue & Other Income 3,658.38 7,270.92 6,901.53 531.85 18,362.69
Identified Operating Expenses 2,164.55 4,018.66 6,625.43 240.21 13,048.85
Allocable Expenses 2.55 5.62 318.72 108.44 436.33
Unaliocable expenses (Net of income) - - - B 3,446.75
Segment Results 1,491.28 3,246.64 (43.62) 183.19 1,430.75
Less: Finance cost 137.04
Provision far Tax 402.43
Profit after Tax 891.28
As at March 31, 2021 (Rs.)
Particulars UK USA India Others Total
Segment Assets 254,51 223.72 1,364.02 91.69 1,933.94
Unallocable Assets. 8,088 48
Total Assets 10,022.43
As at March 31, 2021 (Rs.)
Particulars usa India Others Total
Segment Liabilities and equity - - i B &
Unallocable Liabilities and shareholder's fund 10,022.43
Total Liabilities 10,022.43

The Company has a single business segment as per Accounting Standard 17 dealing with "Segment Reporting” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Other than receivables, all other assets are not
assigned to any Geographies and so shown under Unallocable Assets. Similarly all liabilities are not assigned to any Geographies

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE b

a. Name of Related Parties and description of relationship:
Subsidiary Companies JK Tech US Inc. (Formerly known as Proserve Consulting Inc.), USA

JK Tech UK Limited (Formerly known as JK Technosoft (UK) Limited), UK

Diensten Tech Limited (Formerly known as JKT Consulting Ltd., Ceased to be Subsidiary w.e.f, 29.03.2022)
JK Technosoft Gulf LLC, Sult of Oman (Subsidiary in liquidated w.e.f. 21.03.2021)

IKT Bangladesh Pvt.Ltd, Bangladesh

JKT GCC WLL, Bahrain

E Safe Solutions Pvt Ltd (Formerly Known as IKT Learning Solutions Pyt Ltd), India, w.e.f. 23rd July, 2020
JKT Netharlands B.V., Netherland

Enterprises over which directors have significant influence J. K. Cotton Limited

Diensten Tech Limited (Formerly known as JKT Consul
Enterprises having common director Wow Softech Pvt Lixnus kepors 107121

Enterprises in which relative of director Is a dirctor Insurencexcellence Advisors Private Limited
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Enterprises having significant influence
over the company

Key Management Personnel

Directors

Relative to Key Management

Personnel

b. Transactions with related parties during the current year

1 K Technosoft Limited
Notes Forming part of Financial Statements

Dwarikadhish Finance & |

Co. Pvt.Ltd.

Manphul Trading & Finance Co. Put Ltd.

Satish Chandra Gupta (Whole Time Director)
Saiyad Amir(Company Secretary)

Abhishek Singhania (Director)

N P Agarwal (Director), Resigned w.e.f. 23.09,2021

Maneesh Mansingka (Director}

Partho Pratim Kar (Director)

Vinay Kumar Singhal (Director), Resigned W.e.f. 18th April, 2021

Vipul Prakash (Director)

Satish Chandra Gupta( Whole Time Director)

Arvind Thakur (Director)

Varsha Singhania
Manorama Singhania
Vedang Hari Singhania
Preeti Gupta

[Rs.)
Relatives to Key
Description Subsidiaries Associated Companies/ Enterprises over which | Key Management Management
directors have significant influence Personnel
Personnel
Sale of Services/ Product{Net of Credit Notes) 12,859.59 - -
JK Tech US Inc. (Farmerly known as Proserve Consulting Inc.), USA 9,627.45 - - B
JK Tech UK Limited {Formerly known as JK Technosoft (UK) Limited), UK 3,064.47 - -
JKT Netherlands 167.67
Reimbursement of Expenses/Debit Note 117.96 - - -
JK Tech US Inc. (Formerly known as Proserve Consuiting Inc.), USA 8.40
JK Tech UK Limited (Formerly known as JK Technosoft (UK) Limited), UK 104.04
JKT GCC WLL, Bahrain 5,53,
JKT Bangladesh Limited -
J. K, Cotton Limited - =
Remuneration Paid - - 43.77 37.80
Satish Chandra Gupta( Whole Time Director) 36.07
Saiyad Amir{Company Secretary) 7.70
Preeti Gupta 24.35
Vedang Hari Singhania 13.45
Sitting Fees Paid - 3.06 -
M h M ka (Director) 0.56
Arvind Thakur (Director), W.e.f. 1st June, 2021 2,50
Professional Charge Paid - - 20.00 36.00
Varsha Singhania - - 18.00
Manorama Singhania - 18,00
Arvind Thakur (Director), W.e.f. 1st June, 2021 20.00
Diensten Tech Limited (Formerly known as JKT Consulting Limited) 33.24
Wow Softech Pvt Ltd 294
Rent Charges Paid
Diensten Tech Limited (Formerly known as JKT Consulting Limited) 16.58
Purchase of Fixed Assets 6.00
Insurencexcellence Advisors Private Limited_ 6.00
Received against Loans/ Advance (Principal Amount) 393.95 -
E Safe Solutions Pt Ltd (Formerly Known as JKT Learning Solutions Pyt Ltd) - -
Diensten Tech Limited (Formerly known as JKT Consulting Limited), India 393.95 - -
Loans & Advances Given 49.84 . +
|E Safe Solutions Pvt Ltd (Formerly Known as JKT Learning Solutions Pvt Ltd)* 0.01 =
Diensten Tech Limited (Formerly known as JKT Consulting Limited), India 49.83 -
Balance Written off -
E Safe Solutions Pvt Ltd [Formerly Known as JKT Learning Solutions Pyt Ltd)* L
Transactions with related parties during FY 2020-2021
(Rs.)
Relatives to Key
Assoclated Companies/ Enterprises over which | Key Management
Dy
eaription Subsulartes directors have significant influence Personnel Macagement
Personnel
Sale of Services/ Product(Net of Credit Notes) 10,885.65 s =
K Tech US Inc. {Farmerly known as Proserve Consulting Inc.), USA 7,216.61 -
JK Tech UK Limited (Formerly known as JK Technosoft (UK} Limited), UK 3,618.71
JKT Netherlands 5033
JK Technosoft Bangladesh Pvt.Ltd, Bangladesh -
JKT GCC WLL B
Interest Receivable 35.10 = S
JKT Learning Solutions Private Limited, India - 5 2
Diensten Tech Limited (Formerly known as JKT Consulting Limited), India 5510 = =
Reimbursement of Expenses/Debit Note 16.70 =
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Notes Formil

1K Technosoft Limited
rt of Fi Statements

JK Tech US Inc, (Formerly known as Proserve C Iting Inc.), USA

3.41

JK Tech UK Limited {Formerly known as K Technosoft {UK] Limited), UK

12.32

JKT GCC WLL, Bahrain

0.97

JKT Bangladesh Limited

J. K. Cotton Limited

031

Remuneration Paid

42.96

22.46

Satish Chandra Gupta( Whole Time Director)

40.62

2163

Saiyad Amir(Company Secretary)

2.34

0.83

Preeti Gupta

Vedang Hari Singhania

Sitting Fees Paid

2.16

Maneesh Mansingka

108

Vinay Singhal

lo8

Prof Charge Paid

9.00

37.53

Purchase of Fixed Assets

JKT Consulting Limited

Sale of Fixed Assets

J. K. Cotton Limited

3.52

Balance Written off

JK Technosoft Gulf LLC

Received against Loans/ Advance [Principal Amount)

161.13

£ Safe Solutions Pvt Ltd (Formerly Known as JKT Learning Solutions Pvt Ltd)

Diensten Tech Limited (Formerly known as JKT Consulting Limited), India

161.13

Loans & Advances Given

222.31

E Safe Solutions Pvt Ltd (Formerly Known as JKT Learning Solutions Pvt Ltd)*

101

Diensten Tech Limited (Formerly known as JKT Consulting Limited), India

221.30

Balance Written off

408.62

E Safe Solutions Pvt Ltd (Formerly Known as JKT Learning Solutions Pvt Ltd)*

408.62

balance

Balance with related parties as on 31st March, 2022

* During the year the company has considered the Provision for Loan & Advance for £

-safe Solution Pyt Limited Rs.1.009 Lakh/-{Previous Year Rs 408.62 Lakh)in the previous year which is included In above mentioned

(Rs.)
i Relatives to Key
A C / Enterp over which | Key Management
Description Subsidiaries Management
directors have significant influence Personnel P,
Loan and Advance (Principal Amount) 1.02
Diensten Tech Limited (Formerly known as JKT Consulting Limited), India = 5 B
£ Safe Solutions Pvt Ltd (Formerly Known as IKT Learning Solutions Pvt Ltd 102 -
Receivables
JK Tech UK Limited (Formerly known as JK Technesoft UK Limited 232.29 - -
JK Tech Us Inc. (Formerly known as Proserve Consulting Inc.) 645.33 - -
JKT Gulf LLC, Sultanate of Oman - - -
IKT Bangladesh private Limited 119.92 - -
JKT GCC WLL 81.10 - -
JKT-Nethariand 24.02 - -
J K Cotton Limited - 4.65 -
Other Receivable
Diensten Tech Limited (Formerly known as JKT Consulting Limited), India 36.75
Investment in Subsidiaries 3 s
JK Tech US Inc. (Formerly known as Proserve Consulting Inc.) 10.80 2 s -
JK Tech UK Limited (Formerly known as JK Technosoft UK) Limited) 13.52 -
JKT Bangladesh Put.Ltd, Bangladesh 5.25 B =
JKT GCC WLL 9.05 A -
E Safe Solutions Pvt Ltd (Formerly Known as JKT Learning Solutions Pvt Ltd) 153.00 -

The company has considered the impairment of investment amounting Rs 9.05 Lakh for JKT GCC WLL which is included in above mentioned balance

The company has considered the impairment of Investment amounting Rs, 5.25 Lakh for KT Bangladesh Pvt.Ltd, Bangladesh which is included in above mentioned balance
The company has considered the impairment of Investment amounting Rs 153 Lakh for E Safe Solutions Pvit Ltd (Formerly Known as JKT Learning Solutions Pvt Ltd)

The company has considered the Provision against receivables for JKT Bangladesh Pvt. Ltd for Rs: 37.50 Lakh which is included in above mentioned balance

The company has considered the Provision against recelvable for JKT GCC WLL for Rs. 14.83 Lakh which is included in-above mentioned balance

The company has considered the Provision for Loan & Advance for E-safe Solution Pvt Limited Rs.1.02 Lakh which is included in above mentioned balance

el Report 201137



JTECH

31

32)

33

34

35

b)

1 K Technosoft Limited
Notes Forming part of Financial Statement=:
C Balance with related parties as on 31st March, 2021
(Rs.)
Relatives to Key
Associated Companies/ Enterprises over which | Key Management
Description Subsidiaries Management
. directors have significant influence Personnel S
Loan and Advance Receivable {Principal Amount)
Diensten Tech Limited (Formerly known as JKT Consulting Limited), India 376.58 - - :
E Safe Solutions Pvt Ltd (Formerly Known as JKT Learning Solutions Pvt Ltd) 1.01 - - -
Receivables
JK Tech UK Limited (Formerly known as JK Technosoft UK Limited) 707.02 - - -
JK Tech Us Inc. (Formerly known as Proserve Consulting Inc.) 1,042.74 - - -
JKT Gulf LLC, Sultanate of Oman 273 - B -
JKT Bangladesh private Limited v 116.41 - - -
JKT GCC WLL 125.64 = = =
IKT-Nethariand = 3 =
1 K Cotton Limited - 4.65 - -
Investment in Subsidiaries . -
JK Tech US Inc. (Formerly known as Proserve Consulting Inc ) 10.80 - - -
JK Tech UK Limited (Formerly known as JK Technosoft (UK) Limited) 13.52 - - -
Diensten Tech Limited (Formerly known as JKT Consulting Limited) 83.56 - - -
JKT Gulf LLC, Sdltanate of Oman 158.83 - -
JKT Bangladesh Pvt.Ltd, Bangladesh 5.25 - -
JKT GCC WLL 9.05 - - -
E Safe Solutions Pvt Ltd (Formerly Known as JKT Learning Solutions Pvt Ltd) 153.00 - -
During the year the company has considered the impairment amounting Rs 9.05 Lakh for JKT GCC WLL which is included in above mentioned balance
During the year the company has considerad the impairment amounting Rs. 5.25 Lakh for JKT Bangladesh Pvt.Ltd, Bangladesh which is included in above mentioned balance
During the year the company has considered the impairment ameunting Rs 98 Lakh far E Safe Solutions Pvt Ltd (Formerly Known as JKT Learning Solutions Pvt Ltd) and in the previous year the
company had considered the impairment of Rs 54,00,000/- which is included in above mentioned balance
During the year the company has considered the Provision for JKT Bangladesh Rs. 37.50 Lakh which is included in above mentioned balance
During the year the company has considered the Provision for JKT GCC WLL Rs. 56 Lakh which is included in above mentioned balance
During the year the company has considered the Provision for Loan & Advance for E-safe Salution Pyt Limited Rs.1.009 Lakh which Is included in above mentioned balance
In the previous year the company had considered the impalrment ameunting Rs 107.99 Lakh in JKT Gulf LLC, Sultanate of Oman which is included in above mentioned balance
EARNING PER SHARE
2021-2022 2020-2021
Profit for the year 1,960.62 891.28
Amount available for Equity Shares 1,960.62 891.28
Weighted Average number of Shares 7,749,662 5,594,878
Earning per share
Basic 25.30 15893
Diluted 2530 15.93
Face Value per share 10.00 10.00
PAYMENT TO STATUTORY AUDITOR
2021-2022 2020-2021
Statutory Audit Fees 10.00 10.00
Tax Audit Fees 100 1.00
Certification & Others ) 1.88 118
12.88 12.18
INCOME IN FOREIGN CURRENCY
2021-2022 2020-2021
Consultancy Services 13,688.99 11,461.15
13,688.99 11,461.15
EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY 2021-2022 2020-2021
Foreign Travelling 2.38 -
Internet Charges 8.04 10.18
Professional Charges 35.20 50.09
Advertisement & Publicity 4.62 «
Cost of Services 47.79 25.81
98.03 86.08
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Company, in accordance with its risk r B! it policies and procedures, enters into foreign exchange forward contract to manage its exposure in foreign exchange rates. The counter party is a bank. These contracts
are for a perlod up to one year. The aggregate amount of forward contracts entered into by the company and remaining outstanding at year end are as below:
CURRENCY EXCHANGE 2021-2022 2020-2021
US Dollar/ INR (Sale Contracts) 72.00 39.80
GBP/ INR (Sale Contracts) 813 21.60
The foreign currency exposures not hedged in respect of receivables (net) as at the year end are as under:
usp EUR BHD GBP
Unhedged Exposure in Currency 325 171 0.03 0.40

The Company’s significant leasing arrangements are in respect of operating leases for premises. These leasing arrangements which are not non-cancellable, range between 11 months and 3 years generally, or tonger, and
are usually renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms. The aggregate lease rentals payable are charged as rent in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Lease rental payable :

1 K Technosoft Limited

Notes Forming part of Financial Statements

2021-2022 2020-2021
Not later than 1 year 258.02 417.13
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 638.30 616.66
Later than 5 years -
Lease rent paid during the year: 326.11 418.35
Finaicials Ratio
The ratios for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 as follows:
S No | Ratio Numerator Denominator Current Year Previous Year % Varlance Reason
Current Ratio (in times) Total Current Assets | Total Current Liabilies 6.68 2.36 183.70 | In F.Y 2020-21 the salary
was paid on the 5th day
of the next month,
however in F.Y 2021-22
we are paying in the last
day of current month it
self. Due to this the
salary payable amount is
reduced in F.Y. 2021-22.
1
Debt Equity Ratio (in times) Debts Consist of Total Equity 0.01 0.02 (53.48)| Issue of Equity Shares
borrowing and lase
2 Liabilities
Debt Service Coverage Ratio (in times) EBIT + Depreciation Debt Service = Interest 54.64 8.37 553,17 | Earning increased in FY
and Lease payments + 2021-22 as compare to
Principal Repayments FY 2020-21 as there is no
Extra Ordinary &
Exceptional items in FY
2021-22
3
Return on Equity Ratio (%) Profit for the year (-) | Average Total Equity 27.72 17.31 60.09 | Earning increased in FY
Pref. Dividends 2021-22 as compare to
FY 2020-21 as there is no
Extra Ordinary &
Exceptional ltems in FY
2021-22
4
5 | Inventory Turnover Ratio (in times) Average Inventory Total Turnover - - - | NA
Trade Recelvables Turnover Ratio (in times) Revenue from Average Trade 11.79 6.96 69,29 | Increase in Revenue in
Operation Receivables FY 2021-22 as compare
to FY 2020-21
6
Trade Payables Turnover Ratio (in times) Average Trade Payables 10.61 7.14 48.71 | Increase in Professional
Net Credit Charges, Recruitment
Charges & Subscription
Purchase/Cost of Charges
Services & Other
Expenses
7
Net Capital Turnover (in times) Revenue from Average Working Capital 3.50 4.71 (25.73)| Increase in Woring
Operation (Total CA - Total CL) Capital
8
Net Profit Ratio (in %) Profit for the year Revenue from Operation 9.53 4.92 93.63 | Earning increased in FY
2021-22 as compare to
FY 2020-21 as there is no
Extra Ordinary &
Exceptional Items in FY
2021-22
9
Return on Capital Employed Ratio (in %) Profit before tax and | Capital Employed 27.11 20.58 31.71 | Earning increased in FY
finance cost 2021-22 as compare to
FY 2020-21 as there Is no
Extra Ordinary &
Exceptional Items in FY
2021-22
10
Return on Investment Ratio (%) Income Generated Average Invested funds 16.39 82.89 (80.23)| Income Generated from
from Invested Funds  [in tresury investment Invested Fund is decrease
& investment is Increase
Compare in FY 2021-22
as compare to F.Y 2020~
2021
11

In the opinion of the management, current assets and loans & advances have v;

Details of loan and advances given and Investment made as requir
company has not given any guarantee In respect of loan taken by tﬂ'r
%]

Z\
)
>
=
~

Annual Report 2021-22

W
&

w.lsions of Section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013 have been disclosed under the respective head. The
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1 K Technosoft Limited

Notes Forming part of Financial Statements
40) Movement Of Provision AS per AS- 29

| 1 Carrying
Carrying Amount at  |Amount Utilised Amount at the
the Beginning (Incurred and charged Additional end as on
|S.no | Description 1/08/2021 against the provision) | Unused Amounts reversed during the period _|Provision 31/03/22
1 |Prov for Doubtful debt & Unbilled Revenue 314.22 (219.89, {42.01) 43.30 95.63
2 _|Prov for Bank Balance 1.46 . (1.46) - -
3 |Prov for Doubtiul Securities 5.54 {5.54) - 1.65 1.65
4 _|Prov jor Loans& Advances 2154 {0.98) - 9.67 30.64
343.16 (226.39 (43.47) 54.62 127.92
41) Previous year's figures have been recasted/ restated.
42)

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result frorm the pandemic relating to COVID-13 on the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment, receivables and other current assets, In developing the
assumptions relating ta the possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandernic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial results has used internal and external sources
on the expected future performance of the Company. The Company expects the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered and does not anticipate any impairment . Given the uncertainty because of COVID-19, the
final impact on the Company's assets in future may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial results. The Comnany will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic

conditions,

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE ATTACHED HEREWITH For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
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